HE HEEH
HEH BEHH

OEES D id -]

m
'« CHINA ECOTOURISM GROUP

China Ecotourism Group Limited
PEEREIKESRESIR 2T

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(RBERESMAILZERAF)
Stock code B& 13 X 5% : 1371

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 3§



Corporate Information

NEER

Financial Summary

B E

Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENRRAN

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

BEEREREBABZHEE

Report of the Directors
EEREE

Corporate Governance Report
EEEBRRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR - -HEREARS

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

RAEEmR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEmBAR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A PBIRRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FAmSEBBE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IPAN AN =1
RERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR B AR MY A

Contents
B &%

18
22
50
62
77
87
88
89
91
93

94



2

Corporate Information
NEER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna (Chairperson)
Mr. WU Jingwei

Mr. DI Ling

Mr. QIU Peiyuan

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

Dr. MENG Zhijun

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. HUANG Shenglan
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai
Dr. MENG Zhijun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. WONG Yin Ming

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna
Ms. WONG Yin Ming

AUDITOR
McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023

E=x
BITES

R+ ()

RREXE
BELLE
b &

BYFHTES

mBESLLE
FRAEANESE A&
HEEBL

BEREES
mBELL
PREFIE £ 4
mSEBLT

FMESS
R 2 +
mEBELL
PREFIE £ 4

REZES
PRI 2
mEBELE
PREFIE £ 4

AL
EE Gk
REAX
RAHB 2 +
e R

3 ]

& (BA) MEHEAERAT
R ES Rl



REGISTERED OFFICE
Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Unit 1801, 18/F

Landmark South

39 Yip Kan Street

Wong Chuk Hang

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2136 6618

Fax: (852) 2136 6608

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.ecotourgroup.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

47 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS IN HONG KONG
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
Conyers
Baker & McKenzie

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Industrial Bank Co. Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Corporate Information
NEER

PSR

Victoria Place, 5th Floor

31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

HEREERTEEE T,
B

=M

¥EH395

Landmark South

+ 21801 =

BEiE 1 (852) 2136 6618
B85 : (852) 2136 6608

AR

www.ecotourgroup.com

ROBFERLE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

471 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

EERPBFERLDTE
EARRBAESTARAT
BEEBT

SEAREER1835
SREO711712-1716554

EERERE
FS AR A =A% A
B7e o BREXEEAMTT

FEERRIT
BB LBEGRITERAA

R RITHEBNIT

FEAEHEREARAT  2022/2023 F 3

3



4

Financial Summary
BT E

A summary of results and the assets and liabilities of
China Ecotourism Group Limited (the “Company”) and

its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)

are as follows:

RESULTS

Revenue B

Gross profit EX

Share option expenses BREER
Finance costs B 7 A AR

Loss before income tax BRFTIS TR E 18

Income tax (expense)/credit FTEH (FX) #H %

Loss for the period/year HFREE

(Loss)/profit attributable (E18) HREER :
to:

Owners of the Company ~ AR AHEHF A

Non-controlling interests ~ JE{EA%#ES

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total current assets MENE E R

Total assets BERRE

Total liabilities BfERsE

Net (liabilities)/assets (BRE) BEFE

China Ecotourism Group Limited

PEARERKESEARAR ([ARFE)) REKERR (5
WIAEE D 2XEMEERABERENT :

S
For the
18 months
ended
30 June
2023
BZE For the year ended 31 December
—E-= BEZE+-A=+—HLLEE
~A=1+H 2021 2020 2019 2018
IE+NEA
BME —T-—F —T-FF —T-NF ZE-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FHET FHT
207,797 124,920 118,563 154,354 183,927
62,302 40,893 27,515 61,492 95,941
- - - (5,065) (13,237)
(59,201) (57,521) (86,034) (53,922) (33,396)
(219,379) (285,382) (630,445) (546,345) (153,860)
(489) 4,471 6,527 (3,755) (8,861)
(219,868) (280,911) (623,918) (550,100) (162,721)
(219,030) (258,312) (573,971) (518,793) (169,468)
(838) (22,599) (49,947) (31,307) 6,747
(219,868) (280,911) (623,918) (550,100) (162,721)
EEREE
At 30 June At 31 December
2023 R+=—H=+—8H
i 2021 2020 2019 2018
—EBEC-=F
ANB=+H ZZ=—F ZZT=-FTF ZT-NF ZZT—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FAT FET FHT
154,301 192,041 284,952 311,539 832,814
504,611 573,206 747,470 1,080,922 1,621,804
(642,198) (472,978) (579,172) (549,405) (549,610)
(137,587) 100,228 168,298 531,517 1,072,194

Annual Report 2022/2023



Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2022, under such complicated and volatile external
situations as the Russia-Ukraine conflict, soaring inflation,
the continuous Fed interest rate hikes and the severe
global economic downturn, the Chinese economy
was also facing internal risks such as the resurgence of
COVID-19 pandemic, real estate industry collapse and
economic downturns. However, China has maintained its
overall economic and social stability.

At the beginning of 2023, the COVID-19 pandemic
receded rapidly, and all walks of life entered the post-
pandemic recovery stage. In the first quarter of this
year, the momentum of domestic demand recovery
was obvious. However, in the second quarter, the
three indicators of demand, namely exports in
external demand, retail sales in domestic demand, and
investment, all showed apparent downward trends,
indicating that the economic recovery foundation is not
yet solid and the downward pressure on the economy
is increasing. The July macroeconomic data released
by the National Bureau of Statistics of China revealed a
comprehensive decline in various economic indicators.
Currently, the biggest challenge facing the Chinese
economy is insufficient demand, weak growth and
weakening expectations.

In the past year and a half, our Group’s business was
adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and amidst
difficult internal and external environment. However, the
Group has always maintained a cautious and optimistic
outlook on its future business prospects, continuing to
strive for progress while maintaining stability, diversifying
its development, and actively expanding its ecotourism
and natural and health food business while strengthening
its existing lottery business.

CHINA'S LOTTERY MARKET

In recent years, China reported a substantial decline in
lottery sales as a result of policy adjustments in the lottery
industry and the COVID-19 pandemic. The lottery market
has gradually picked up since 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W& D

From early 2022 to the first half of 2023, China
registered a growth in lottery sales. According to the
data released by the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”),
China’s lottery ticket sales reached RMB424.652 billion
in 2022 and RMB273.899 billion from January to June
2023. The cumulative sales from 2022 to the first half
of 2023 amounted to RMB698.551 billion, a year-on-
year increase of 25.8%. From 2022 to the first half of
2023, the welfare lottery sales edged up by 9.6% year-
on-year to RMB237.948 billion; while sports lottery sales
grew by 36.2% year-on-year to RMB460.604 billion. As
for sales of different lottery products from 2022 to the
first half of 2023, Lotto sales increased by 0.6% year-
on-year to RMB239.811 billion. Single Match Games
(“SMG") sales increased by 57.5% year-on-year to
RMB302.897 billion. Paper-based Scratch Card (“PSC”)
sales increased by 25.4% year-on-year to RMB110.467
billion. KENO type Lottery (“KENO”) sales increased by
23.7% to RMB45.375 billion. Video Lottery sales reached
RMB1.29 million. The sales of Lotto, SMG, PSC and
KENO accounted for 34.3%, 43.4%, 15.8% and 6.5% of
total lottery sales, respectively. In terms of regional sales,
Guangdong, Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Shandong and Henan
ranked among the top five in terms of sales volume.
Apart from Tibet, other provinces in China reported year-
on-year growth in lottery sales, of which Anhui, Jiangsu,
Hunan, Zhejiang, Hubei and Guizhou recorded year-on-
year increases of more than 30%.

CHINA’S ECOTOURISM MARKET

In 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic caused the fluctuations
in demand in the domestic travel market. Affected by
its multi-point dispersal, local outbreaks of COVID-19
pandemic as well as its rapid spread due to nationwide
restrictions loosening up in December, the tourism
industry was bombarded seriously. At the beginning
of 2023, COVID-19 pandemic miraculously retruded
rapidly, and it was then re-classified from a “Class A
Infectious Disease” to a “Class B Infectious Disease”.
Although COVID-19 pandemic has caused re-infection
in some people successively and influenza A has also
formed a wave of epidemic, however, it has not exerted
a significant impact on social production and people’s
livelihood. The vibrancy of the Chinese New Year
and Labour Day tourism market reflected the general
mentality of the public towards the pandemic and the
retaliatory travel consumption accumulated over the past
three years. In the first half of 2023, the tourism market
fully recovered, with the number of trips and tourism
revenue returning to pre-pandemic levels. However, with
the continuous instability of the international political and
economic environment, the acute overall economic and
employment situation in China, weak economic growth,
and increasing downward pressure on the economy
currently, people have become more cautious and even
dare not to consume recently. Therefore, the overall
stable recovery of the tourism industry still needs to be
observed in the overall trend of the domestic and foreign
economy in the second half year.

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Lottery Business

Computer-generated ticket games (“CTG”)

CTG is the major product of China’s lottery industry.
The Group’s subsidiaries, Guangzhou Lottnal Terminal
Company Limited, Guangzhou Three Rings Yongxin
Technology Company Limited and Beijing Bestinfo
Cyber Technology Co., Ltd., focus on the provision of
core products and services such as CTG, lottery betting
terminals, lottery scanners and readers to lotteries, hence
they are recognized by China’s welfare lottery and sports
lottery sectors. The lottery terminal equipment and lottery
sales management system developed and produced
by the Group are widely used by many China’s welfare
lotteries and sports lotteries at provincial level. While
providing technical services to lottery organizations, the
Group has made a success of the largest scale and highest
sales volume in provincial level in the domestic welfare
lottery industry.

From 2022 to the first half of 2023, the Group reported
ongoing development of its CTG business in the welfare
lottery and sports lottery markets. In the welfare lottery
sector, the Group’s sales in the Guangdong Welfare
Lottery market, the largest provincial welfare lottery
market it serves, amounted to RMB27.172 billion in 2022
to the first half of 2023, as it remained the top seller in
provincial welfare lottery markets in China. Sales from the
Chongqing Welfare Lottery market served by the Group
in 2022 to the first half of 2023 amounted to RMB5.5
billion. In the sports lottery sector, the Group won the
provincial sports lottery terminal procurement contracts
of Gansu, Xinjiang, Guizhou, Inner Mongolia, Shaanxi,
Shanxi, Sichuan and Guangdong, as well as the after-
sales maintenance service contracts from the provincial
sports lottery authorities of Zhejiang, Hunan, Henan,
Guangdong, Shanxi, Liaoning, Inner Mongolia and
Shaanxi. In particular, in terms of the sports lottery sector,
the Group topped the industry in terms of the number
of Sports Lottery Terminals tendered in the first half of
2023; in regional markets, the Group won the tender for
Guangdong Welfare Lottery Sales Terminals Procurement
Project, Guangdong Computer Welfare Lottery Sales
Management System Project, Guangdong Sports Lottery
Terminals Supply Project and Guangzhou Welfare Lottery
Sales Area Comprehensive Management Service Project in
Guangdong Province, the largest provincial market in the
lottery industry, and continued to provide multi-faceted
services to the largest provincial market in China, which
demonstrated our actions and achievements in deeply
cultivating the largest provincial-level lottery market in
China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W& D

Overseas Business

In 2022, COVID-19 pandemic posed tremendous
limitations on the implementation of the Group’s overseas
operations. In October 2022, the Group, together with
its local partner in the Philippines, was authorized by
the Philippine Charity Sweepstakes Office (“PCSO”) to
sell lottery tickets through personal electronic devices
in the Philippines. In the fourth quarter of 2022, the
Group started the technical interface with two major
local payment platforms, GCASH and PAYMAYA, in
the Philippines and has completed a lottery sales small
program based on GCASH, making sufficient technical
preparations for phase | product launch. Currently, the
project is entering the final government compliance
review stage, and it is expected that the POS terminal
equipment project and the mobile phone sales lottery
project will be launched one after another in 2023.
Commencing the third quarter of 2022, the Philippine
government has increased its efforts to crack down on
online gambling and illegal lottery. The Group and its
partners are actively planning interactive lottery game
products for the Philippine government that are more
suitable for middle- to high-income groups and the
younger generation.

Furthermore, in December 2022, the Group joined hands
with a partner in Ghana, the National Lottery Authority
(“NLA"), to consolidate resources and planned to develop
sales channels and introduce a new sales agent to sell the
60-year history NLA 5/90 lottery game through handheld
terminals. The Group, for the first time, applies e-purse
payment to the lottery business in Ghana, achieving a
good instant lottery dividend experience. The Ghana
lottery project was launched online in January 2023. As of
the end of June 2023, the number of handheld terminals
deployed reached over 3,000, and sales amount have
been increasing rapidly since its launch in January.
The Group is confident that after about half a year of
market cultivation, the number of terminal deployments
is expected to reach 7,000, and sales amount will be
significantly increased.

Smart Retail

In recent years, there has been an increasingly strong
demand for the digitalisation and intelligentisation
of retail lottery sales. As such, the industry has been
facing developments and changes involving channel
restructuring and as well as expansion and innovation,
and lottery institutions have continued to enhance the
development of channel infrastructure and regulated
management.

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has pioneered in the proposition of the new
retail concept for lottery in the industry, underpinned by
the comprehensive application of innovative technologies
such as smart hardware, the Internet of things, Big Data,
blockchain and Al in the operation, management and
marketing of lottery sale channels. The development
of comprehensive smart retail solutions, including a
variety of smart terminal products, smart storefront
management, smart payment, smart marketing and Big
Data service systems, has been completed to provide
comprehensive services to lottery issuers and sales outlets.

Video Lottery

Dongguan Tianyi Electronic Company Limited (“DGTY"),
a subsidiary of the Group, was the exclusive equipment
provider for China Welfare Lottery Video Lottery — Welfare
VLT, an instant electronic video lottery issued by China
Welfare Lottery which was suspended in July 2020.

DGTY and Beijing China Lottery Online Technology
Company Limited (“CLO") entered into a ten-year
cooperative contract in 2005, pursuant to which DGTY
would supply Welfare VLT terminal equipment to CLO
and received commensurate remuneration for use.
After the expiry of the mutual contract in 2015, CLO
continued to conduct sales using the terminals of DGTY
and generate ongoing revenue, but did not make any
payment of remuneration for use to DGTY.

DGTY filed a civil lawsuit with the People’s High Court of
Beijing in 2016, demanding the payment of remuneration
for use by CLO for its continued use of DGTY terminals
after the expiry of the contract. The People’s High Court
ruled that CLO was required to pay RMB54,835,700 and
accrued interests to DGTY. In view of the fact that CLO
continued to conduct lottery sales and generate revenue
by using terminals owned by DGTY during a period of
more than five years after the expiry of the contract and
provisions under pertinent laws and regulations, the
Group might take further legal action to protect its legal
rights and interests.

China’s Ecotourism Business

Project of Wangwu Shan Scenic Area and Wulongkou
Scenic Area in Jiyuan City

Over the past year, the Group had assigned a team to
work closely with Jiyuan City Cultural Tourism Investment
Group Limited (“Jiyuan City Group”) and performed
its duty. The Group put strenuous efforts to facilitate
the management improvement, service transformation
and marketing innovation of the scenic areas, and had
achieved remarkable results, which were fully affirmed by
the partners.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN W& D

In March 2023, the Group signed the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement with Jiyuan City Group. Both
parties will adhere to the principle of “legality and
compliance, complementary advantages, equality and
mutual benefit, win-win cooperation” to carry out
comprehensive, multi-level, and multi-mode “three-
dimensional cooperation”, and jointly build the “first
brand of Chinese tourist attractions”. After negotiations,
both parties confirmed that the following project
cooperation will first be carried out in the Wangwu Shan
Scenic Area:

(1) With the theme of the Taoist culture of the “Best
Fairyland in the World” on Wangwu Shan, the
Ziwei Xiangong Dao Culture Research Institute will
be built at the original site of the Ziwei Palace. By
leveraging our resource advantages, the Group aims
to promote and inherit Taoist culture and Chinese
medicine and health culture.

(2) Based on the ecological resources of the Wangwu
Shan World Geopark, we will jointly build the first
highland for forest camping in China. Leveraging
the resource advantages of Wangwu Shan, which is
surrounded by forests and streams, with an optimal
altitude and good ecology, they complement the
business formats with the unique homestays such
as Xiaoyou Dongtian and Xiaoshifang, and jointly
establish the first brand and highland of forest
camping in China.

(3) Led by the development of the Wangmu Cave area
behind Wangwu Shan, we will expand the depth
of the tourist route in the Wangwu Shan Scenic
Area, enhance the secondary consumption project
through the construction of sightseeing cableways,
and form a “big Wangwu” pattern, transforming
the products of Wangwu Shan from “one-day tour”
to “two-day tour” and “multi-day tour”.

(4) Taking the creation of 5A as the driving force, the
creation and improvement project of the Wangwu
Shan 5A Scenic Area will be fully launched in
2023. In accordance with the various standards
for 5A level scenic areas, the Group will fully
empower from various aspects such as planning
and construction, project improvement, operation
and management, brand marketing, etc., and work
together with Jiyuan City Group to strive to turn
the Wangwu Shan Scenic Area into a national 5A
level scenic area as soon as possible and promote
Wangwu Shan to become a well-known scenic area
nationwide.

In addition, both parties will seek in-depth cooperation
on the entrusted operation of the Wangwu Old Street
and Xiaoshifang Hotel under Jiyuan City Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Wangwu Shan Scenic Area is a national 4A tourist
attraction and a World Geopark, which covers a total area
of 265 square kilometers. Being one of the nine famous
mountains of ancient China, it ranks the top among the
ten great grotto-heavens in Taoism and is the holy land
of the Quanzhen School, a main sect of Taoism. Besides,
it is said that the famous Chinese fable called “Yu Gong
Removes the Mountains” happened there. The spirit of
Yu Gong Removes the Mountains, not afraid of hardships
and hard work, is the spiritual character of Chinese
people, as well as the main cultural brand of Wangwu
Shan Scenic Area. Tiantan Shan, the highest peak in
this area, was the place where Huangdi, the Chinese
people’s common ancestor, held the heavenly rituals. It
has been commonly known as the “Spine of Taihang”
and the “Earth Pillar that Holds Up Heaven”. The total
forest coverage rate of the scenic area exceeds 98%. With
more than 2,000 years of history, the Ginkgo planted by
Lao-Tzu, is the most precious specimen and is therefore
called the “living plant fossil in the world”. The national
treasure “Yangtai Temple” is a royal Taoist temple built
in the Tang Dynasty. Li Bai, Du Fu, Gao Xi and other
renowned scholars paid visits to the temple. Li Bai’s only
surviving authentic work, “Post for Ascending Yang Tai”,
was written to tell the story of visiting his old friend, Sima
Chengzhen, at the Yangtai Temple. The Post is a Class A
national cultural relic, known as the “precious treasure”
of national treasures. At present, through the perfect
support and brand strengthening, we have formed the
initial closed loop of tourism + vacation + recreation +
cultural industry in Wangwu Shan Scenic Area. Now, with
the aim of building a cultural tourism recreation brand
with scale and professional development, we strive to
turn ecological advantages into economic advantages
underpinning on the belief that lucid waters and lush
mountains are invaluable assets.

Wulongkou Scenic Area, a national 4A tourist attraction
and the national macaque nature reserve, comprises five
major scenic areas including the spring (Wenquan), the
valley (Pangu) and the river (Qinhe), boasting 68 natural
or cultural scenic spots that feature precious historic and
cultural sites such as the ruins of water conservancy work
and Pangu Temple from the Qin Dynasty, as well as the
ancient gallery road in the Kingdom of Wei from the
Three-Kingdom Period and the Departing-Taihang Trail
of Zhu De. It is also a national-grade protected natural
habitat for rhesus monkeys inhabited by more than 3,000
monkeys living in 12 troops. The local springs provide
mineral geothermal resources with the highest water
temperature and superior water quality among springs in
inland China, making it an exceptionally ideal location for
rehabilitation.
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The cooperation between the two parties will advance
the market-driven operation of Wangwu Shan Scenic
Area and Wulongkou Scenic Area, enhance our brand
image, optimise our product mix, accelerate the creation
of 5A Scenic Spot for the Wangwu Mountain Scenic Area
to fully generate sound economic and social benefits, and
help to achieve the management objectives of qualitative,
internationalised and sustainable development of the
scenic areas.

Strategic Cooperation with Concord New Energy
Group Limited in Beijing

On 6 June 2023, the Group signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with Concord New Energy Group
Limited in Beijing.

For a long period of time, both companies have paid close
attention to the balance between economic development
and environmental protection by insisting on the route
of green, ecological and sustainable development,
and we have made tremendous contributions to the
development of local cultural and tourism industries. The
comprehensively strategic cooperation between the two
companies will usher in a new phase of “New Energy +
Tourism”.

According to the agreement, both parties, leveraging
their advantages and experience in the cultural and
tourism industry and new energy, will actively promote
the cooperation in the design of cultural and tourism
projects, investment and development, operation and
management, and marketing in various provinces across
the country by integrating resources in the industry,
innovation, service, talent and ecological chains. We
will create a new mode of “New Energy + Tourism” to
promote project implementation and operation and
assist the development of the local cultural and tourism
industry, aiming to create a better future for more
people.

Natural and Health Food Business

In 2022, against the backdrop of recurring pandemic
outbreaks in some local regions, Natural Forestfood Farm
Company Limited (“NFFL”) sustained growth in business
results while maintaining stability. Especially in the
second half of 2022, it demonstrated a better business
growth momentum.

In terms of platform, the Company has built and
upgraded the website, APP and WeChat mini-program of
Forest Food, and set up an account in TikTok, as well as
a team for live broadcasts, short videos and community
operations. The Company formed six online sale platform
matrices: Forest Food website, Forest Food APP, Forest
Food WeChat mini-program, Tmall market and TikTok,
and established a traffic channel from the public domain
to the private domain through community operation.

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023

ETNAEREEIREUASREEAREORRENTS
LEF RAREER BLERERE LINREEWU
RESARIE  RNBBERFKERSENTENm B
AeRaE8 BEREMAHERRNEZERR -

HREH SRS MEK S

“EC=FRARNR AKREEBAFEREEERA
AEILRBEZERS K -

2R 2 B 5 B DA SRS 455 48 B A5 3 R B AR RE AR A A R
BETE BRERE £ AIHEERZIE RE
EW T NIREXFERBHTEARNER - tLREHFHRE
ZHEEESE  FAR T [HEER+IRE | OB -

EHAE T—IBRDBRESQERITEMHER
BEMESMTERER  EEXHE - BIFE - RAHE
AABEMAERRE FETERES  E2BXENEGE
EXRIAERBIRG RERE - ELEE  SHER
EAE - BIRITE R R+ ORI R - (RERE R
WAEE BN IREENER - RES ARLERL -

R R R B

—T- % ERBUEAERELRAGERT - KA
WERGBERAR ((RAWSE]) HEMBHAF - LK
ETEF  BR2BLBHNERES -

EFEIE  BEMNARTHZMREE - APP - {52
FFrABFBTRESRE A27TERE ERAMER
BEEG R THRMARRE  RMRBAPP - ZRHR
mMEF C REES - REBES A NARMERFaRE
WiBBHAES R TRAMB LR ERE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

In the first half of 2023, NFFL achieved significant
breakthroughs in both its products and operation.

Since its launch, our wheat protein powder has received
wide market recognition, which is proven by consumers’
feedback that products bear obvious effects, and also
their repurchases. At the same time, the Company has
upgraded the protein powder products and developed
new flavors of bar products simultaneously. It upgraded
the automated line for protein powder canning and bar
loading, realizing the automated production of these
products, and the Company will launch more upgraded
products in the future.

In terms of mushrooms, NFFL has been expanded to
include new products such as armillaria mellea, bolete,
Morchella and termitomyces albuminosus. At the same
time, it added more spicy products such as anise,
cinnamon, myrcia, Sichuan Pepper, chilli, Amomum tsao-
ko, netmeg and fennel seed. All are produced by our
factories and have been marketed.

For the operation, the Company has applied promotional
channels including WeChat video account and
Xiaohongshu in addition to our six platforms like Forest
Food. Combining with its own new media matrix and
the distribution of the content of the Net celebrities,
the Company achieved direct sales, brand exposure
and private diversion through live broadcasting, short
videos, graphics, and other forms. At the same time, it
has developed various cooperation channels, such as
distribution group leaders, MCN organization, and major
customer sourcing. At present, the Company has built a
private community regime with nearly 600 private users,
dozens of distribution group leaders, and more than 100
distribution anchors, and we keep on growing.

By focusing on channel operations, NFFL will market its
products in full force based on the achievements in the
first half year, hoping to bring higher results and profits
to the Group.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Amid lackluster economic growth and higher interest
rates, inflation and geopolitical risks facing the entire
world currently, China faces an unstable foundation
in economic recovery, which requires more efforts to
promote a sustained economic upturn. Despite this, the
Group remains cautiously optimistic about its business
prospects. We believe that confidence is more important
than gold, thus we should be more confident, especially
in this critical moment.

The central government has put forward the core task
of building a modernized and strong socialist country,
which requires both speed and quality in its growth.
China’s economy has huge development resilience and
potential, therefore the long-term positive fundamentals
remain unchanged. The government has taken a series
of strong measures to facilitate economic recovery in the
post-pandemic era, and various policies to guarantee
high-quality development. We believe that the economy
in China will grow rapidly and residents’ consumption
power will further increase, thereby China’s lottery market
and ecotourism market will recover comprehensively.

In recent years, with “building a responsible, trustworthy
and high-quality national public welfare lottery” as its
goal, China’s lottery industry has carried out a great deal
of work in risk prevention and control, brand building,
channel management, and the promotion of healthy
sales, etc. As a result, the industry has made tremendous
progress in some core indicators and basic elements in
its transformation and development, achieving phrase
gaining. Now China’s lottery industry has become more
regularized and standardized.

With our in-depth understanding of and ongoing
investment in the lottery business over the years, the
Group will continue to provide full-product and full
value-chain services for lottery organizations, including
“technical systems, terminal equipment, gaming products
and channel service management”, so as to maintain its
leading position in China’s lottery industry. At the same
time, the Group will leverage its advantageous resources
to achieve extensive cooperation. At the same time, the
Group will go global by relying on the domestic market
and opening up more new business segments.

The Group will also continue to consolidate its resources
and promote ecotourism in China and natural and health
food businesses as it incubates new business growth
niches through ongoing innovation to strive for greater
investment returns for shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$207.8 million (for the year ended 31 December
20217: HK$124.9 million) for the 18 months ended 30
June 2023, representing an increase of approximately
66% over Year 2021. Loss attributable to owners of
the Company for the 18 months ended 30 June 2023
amounted to approximately HK$219.0 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2021: HK$258.3 million).

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Gearing Ratio and
Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$445.8 million (at 31 December
2021: HK$238.4 million). The Group believes that it
has adequate financial resources to fund its capital and
operating requirements.

The Group had outstanding bank and other borrowings
as at 30 June 2023 of approximately HK$241.9 million
(at 31 December 2021: HK$197.0 million). As at 30 June
2023, the bank borrowings and banking facilities of the
Group were secured by (i) leasehold land and buildings
of the Group with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$318.4 million (at 31 December 2021: HK$336.7
million); and (ii) a personal guarantee executed by
a director of the Company (at 31 December 2021:
a personal guarantee executed by a director of the
Company).

At 30 June 2023, the convertible bonds of the Company
was amounted to HK$155.8 million (at 31 December
2021: HK$127.1 million) and the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of HK$154.2 million (the “New Option
1 Bonds”). The Company entered into the trust deed
dated 7 April 2017 as supplemented and amended by a
supplemental trust deed dated 28 March 2019, a second
supplemental trust deed dated 4 November 2019, a
third supplemental trust deed dated 28 April 2020, a
fourth supplemental trust deed dated 3 May 2021, a fifth
supplemental trust deed dated 3 November 2021 (the
“5th Supplemental Trust Deed”) and a sixth supplemental
trust deed dated 5 May 2022 (the “6th Supplemental
Trust Deed”). On 3 November 2021, the Company and
the holders of New Option 1 Bonds entered into the 5th
Supplemental Trust Deed to amend the payment terms.
Repayments will be in three remaining instalments: of
5%, 10% and 55% of the principal amount outstanding
as at the third amendment date of 28 April 2020 (or,
if lower, such amount as would result in the principal
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amount outstanding being reduced to zero) on 7 January
2022, 7 May 2022 and the maturity date of 7 November
2022 respectively. The Company has repaid the first
installment of HK$8.7 million on 7 January 2022, the
principal outstanding after such installment payment
was HK$113.6 million. On 5 May 2022, the Company
and the holders of New Option 1 Bonds entered into
the 6th Supplemental Trust Deed to further extend the
maturity date from 7 November 2022 to 7 November
2023 and the principal amount outstanding of the New
Option 1 Bonds was increased from HK$113.6 million to
HK$154.2 million (including accrued interest up to (but
excluding) 7 May 2022. 100% of New Option 1 Bonds
is now repayable in one lump sum on 7 November 2023
and bears interest at 7.0% per annum with effective from
5 May 2022.

During the period under review, no New Option 1 Bonds
had been converted into the shares of the Company by
the bondholders. Based on the adjustment provision
under the terms and conditions of the New Option 1
Bonds, an adjustment shall be made to the New Option 1
Bonds’ conversion price to HK$33.8 per share with effect
from 20 January 2023 as a result of the completion of
the share consolidation. The maximum number of shares
of the Company that will be issued upon conversion of
all the outstanding New Option 1 Bonds was 4,561,005
shares of the Company.

Details of the New Option 1 Bonds may refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 10 March
2017, 16 March 2017, 24 March 2017, 7 April 2017,
7 November 2017, 26 April 2018, 22 March 2019, 28
March 2019, 1 November 2019, 4 November 2019, 23
April 2020, 28 April 2020, 27 April 2021, 3 May 2021, 10
June 2021, 1 November 2021, 3 November 2021, 4 May
2022, 5 May 2022 and 18 January 2023 relating to the
New Option 1 Bonds.

The Group’s total deficit amounted to approximately
HK$137.6 million at 30 June 2023 (total equity at
31 December 2021: HK$100.2 million). At 30 June
2023, net current liabilities of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$445.8 million (at 31 December 2021:
HK$238.4 million), including approximately HK$84.2
million in cash and bank balances and HK$19.4 million
in restricted bank deposits (at 31 December 2021:
approximately HK$87.7 million and HK$13.3 million).

The gearing ratio (defined as total liabilities over total
assets) of the Group at 30 June 2023 was approximately
127.3% (at 31 December 2021: 82.5%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Exposure to Exchange Rates Fluctuations

All the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated either in Hong Kong dollar, United States
dollar or Renminbi. Foreign exchange risk arising from
the normal course of operations is considered to be
minimal.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2023, the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at net book value of approximately HK$318.4
million (at 31 December 2021: HK$336.7 million)
were pledged to secure the bank and other borrowings
granted to the Group.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 30 June 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (At 31 December 2021: Nil).

Significant Investments, Material Acquisition and
Disposal

On 13 October 2021, the Company entered into
the Equity Transfer Agreement with Golden Tourism
Group Limited (&£ ik & B B R 2 &) (the “Vendor”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser (being the Company
or a subsidiary of the Company nominated by the
Company) conditionally agreed to acquire, and the
Vendor conditionally agreed to sell, representing 70% of
the total equity interest of Sangingshan Cultural Tourism
Company Limited (=5 LU XL IRE D AR A F) at the
consideration of RMB210.0 million. In view of the severe
COVID-19 epidemic in China and Hong Kong in the first
quarter of 2022, many work cannot be carried out and
proceed, and the transaction requirements cannot be
completed within the agreed timeline, the Equity Transfer
Agreement has been rendered impossible to perform.
As such, the Company issued a notice to the Vendor to
terminate the transaction contemplated under the Equity
Transfer Agreement on 27 June 2022.

Save as disclosed, for the eighteen months ended 30 June
2023, the Group did not hold any significant investment
with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets
and there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the Group.

Staff

As at 30 June 2023, the Group employed 209 full time
employees (31 December 2021: 201). The management
believes that the competence of employees is a major
contributing factor to the Group’s sustained growth and
advancement in profitability. Staff remuneration is based
on performance and experience. In addition to basic
salary, benefits for employees include a performance-
related bonus, contributory provident fund, medical
insurance and regulated employees’ social security
program in China. The Group also adopted a share
option scheme under which options may be granted to
eligible staff based on individual performance. Training
programs for staff are provided as and when required.
The Group will further strengthen its team buildup, in
order to offer enhanced services for all business of the
Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESENREREEAEZERE

DIRECTORS

Chan Tan Na, Donna

Board’s Chairperson and Executive Director

Ms. Chan, aged 42, joined the Group in 2012 and is
currently the Board’s Chairperson and an Executive
Director of the Company. Ms. Chan is responsible for
planning and leading the implementation of the Group's
overall strategies for operational development. She
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and Finance
from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree
in Economics from Boston University, USA. She is a
qualified Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA). Ms. Chan
held positions at Deutsche Bank’s Corporate Finance
department and Atlantis Investment Management (Hong
Kong) Limited. Ms. Chan was the chairman and an
executive director of China Carbon Neutral Development
Group Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong. Ms.
Chan is the daughter of Ms. LAU Ting, the substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Wu Jingwei

Executive Director

Mr. Wu, aged 52, joined the Group in 2007 and is
currently an Executive Director. Mr. Wu assists the Board’s
Chairperson in planning and leading the implementation
of the Group’s overall strategies for development. Mr.
Wu has overall responsibilities for the operations and
management of the Group’s lottery business with
extensive experience in leading the China Welfare
Lottery Video Lottery Business, Computer-generated
Ticket Games Business, Video Lottery Business and New
Media Lottery Business. Mr. Wu has over twenty years of
experience in information technology. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Wu had held senior management positions in
PKU Founder Group and Hisense Group. Mr. Wu holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering from Beijing
Technology and Business University.

Di Ling

Executive Director

Mr. Di, aged 59, joined the Group in July 2021 and is
currently an Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Di is responsible for the Group’s business development
and operation management of ecotourism in China.
Mr. Di is experienced in risk investment and corporate
finance sectors. He holds a Bachelor’s degree from
the Department of Thermal Engineering of Tsinghua
University. He served as the President of SB Green
Investment Fund Limited since 2019 and the Standing
Vice President of SB China Capital between 2011 and
2019. He has extensive experience in risk management,
project management, corporate restructuring and debt
restructuring. Mr. Di is an executive director of China
Carbon Neutral Development Group Limited, a listed
company in Hong Kong.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Qiu Peiyuan

Executive Director

Mr. Qiu, aged 58, joined the Group in November 2021
and is currently an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Qiu is responsible for the Group’s capital strategies
and investment in mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Qiu
is a chartered financial analyst, a certified financial
planner in Canada and has Canada security practitioner
qualification. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Biology
from Nankai University, a Master’s degree in BioScience
from the University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada. Mr. Qiu has over twenty years of
experience in financial, where he was involved in several
fields including but not limited to personal financial
planning, pension investment, bank treasury investment,
investment risk management and asset management. Mr.
Qiu joined the Bank of Nova Scotia as a senior analyst and
manager since 2003. He was the vice president of Asia of
T. Rowe Price Group from 2008 to 2011. He established
the International Business Department and was a general
manager of International Business Department of
Huabao Trust Co., Limited from 2011 to 2015. He was
the president of Overseas Investment Department and
senior managing director of Ping An Trust Co., Limited
from 2015 to 2019. Mr. Qiu serves as the chief executive
officer of First Ocean Financial Holdings Co. Limited and
as non-executive and non-independent director of Ascent
Bridge Limited, a listed company in Singapore. Mr. Qiu
was an executive director of Chong Kin Group Holdings
Limited, a non-executive director of China Health Group
Limited and an independent non-executive director of
NOVA Group Holdings Limited, all are listed companies
in Hong Kong.

Huang Shenglan

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Huang, aged 71, joined the Group in 2002 and is
currently an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Huang was an executive director and
the deputy governor of China Everbright Bank, Head
Office and was an executive director and the general
manager of China Everbright Technology Limited. Mr.
Huang holds a Diploma in Arts from Huazhong Normal
University and in International Economics from Huadong
Normal University and a certificate in International
Economic Law from Xiamen University and in Advanced
Management Programme from the Harvard Business
School, USA. Mr. Huang was a non-executive director of
Burwill Holdings Limited and China Fortune Investments
(Holding) Limited, both were listed companies in Hong
Kong.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

ESENREREEAEZERE

Chan Ming Fai

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 62, joined the Group in 2006 and is
currently an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chan is currently an independent business
consultant. Prior to that, he was the chief executive
officer of Full Seas Technology Group and the president
of Dandelion Capital Group, which is a private financial
advisory company. He has over thirty years of experience
in investment banking and asset management. Mr.
Chan had worked for Jardine Fleming Investment
Management with a major responsibility to market unit
trusts and asset management products in Hong Kong
and subsequently in various Asian markets, and was
particularly instrumental in the establishment of Jardine
Fleming’s investment trust operation in Japan, Korea and
Indonesia. Mr. Chan also co-founded the KGI Group,
which is a pan-Asian investment bank with shareholders
including major investors and institutions in Asia, where
he was the head of the asset management operation,
which managed about USD400 million in hedge funds
and other investment portfolios, and was also a member
of the management committee of KGI Group. Mr.
Chan was a non-executive director of Windmill Group
Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences with a major in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong.

Meng Zhijuan

Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Meng, aged 54, joined the Group in July 2021 and is
currently an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Dr. Meng holds a doctorate degree in Laws
(the direction of Marxism in China) from the Central
University of Finance and Economics. He is currently
the Vice President of Orient Victory Group, President
of China Comfort Travel Cultural Tourism Industry
Group, Chairman of Jishan China Comfort Travel Health
Technology Development Co., Limited and Director
of China Comfort Travel Group. He is also the industry
mentor of Beijing International Studies University MTA
(Master of Tourism Management) and MBA (Master of
Business Administration) Education Center, the Chairman
of the CEO Association of the Central University of
Finance and Economics, and a Director of the China
Business Association. Dr. Meng was the Commissioner
of the Economic Development Bureau of the Beijing
Municipal Commission of Commerce (Headquarter), a
temporary position of the General Manager of Marketing
of COFCO Meat Investments Company Limited, a
subsidiary of COFCO Corporation, and the Chief
Executive Officer and President of China Comfort Travel
Group Limited.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Zhu Xinxin

Senior Vice President and Director of the Group’s Human
Resource and Administrative Department

Ms. Zhu, aged 44, joined the Group in 2008. She
is currently the Senior Vice President of the Group
and Director of the Group’s Human Resource and
Administrative Department. Ms. Zhu had been the
operation manager of Protiviti Independent Risk
Consulting, China, a global business consulting and
internal audit firm. Ms. Zhu had also worked in Accenture,
a global leading management consulting, information
technology services and outsourcing company. At
Accenture, she participated in various projects including
the CNOOC SAP implementation project, Robert Half
International People Soft Implementation project and
BP Finance & Accounting Outsourcing project. Ms. Zhu
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business and Finance from
the University of Westminster and a Master’s degree in
Development Finance from the University of Manchester.
Ms. Zhu also holds the Chief Human Resource Officer
certificate, conducted by the Business School at Renmin
University of China and ILR School at Cornell University.
At the beginning of 2020, Ms. Zhu applied for a graduate
degree in psychology at China University of Political
Science and Law, which ranks the third in psychology in
China, and successfully obtained a graduation certificate
in mid-2022. Meanwhile, in June 2022, Ms. Zhu obtained
the professional technical level certificate of “Senior User
Research Engineer” issued by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s Republic of
China.

Tan Yung Kai, Richard

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Tan, aged 51, joined the Group in 2000. He is
currently the Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
responsible for the overall financial accounting of the
Group. Mr. Tan has over twenty years of experience in
the audit and the accounting fields. He had worked for
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, an international accounting
firm involved in the various auditing and due diligence
activities. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce
from McGill University, Canada and a Master’s degree
in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Tan is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Report of the Directors
EERWE

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
presents to the shareholders their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the
eighteen months ended 30 June 2023 (the “Reporting
Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding.

The principal businesses of the Group are (i) provision
of technology and operation services for lottery systems,
terminal equipment and gaming products in the China’s
lottery market, which covers various lottery products
ranging from video lottery, computer-generated ticket
games and KENO-type lottery to new media lottery;
(ii) research and development, processing, production
and sales of natural and health food; and (iii) project
development and operation of ecotourism.

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 30 June 2023 are set out in Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment information
for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2023 are set out
in Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review during the Reporting Period
are set out in the “Business Review” section of the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 5 to 14
of this report.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations
and business prospects may be affected by number of
risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining
to the Group’s business. The key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group can be found in “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Control Contracts” and
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this report. There
may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
shown above which are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.
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KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is committed to maintaining, and has
maintained, good relationships with, its employees,
customers and suppliers with a view to fostering better
mutual understanding and/or a sense of belonging
towards the Company. This is conducive to implementing
the Group’s strategies and business objectives, as well as
the Group’s business development and sustainability in
the long run.

The Group believes that its employees are critical
factors to the Group’s success and competitiveness in
the market. To attract high calibre people and solidify
the management of the Group, eligible participants
(including employees of the Group) may be granted
options to subscribe for the shares pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme. The Group also provides continuous
learning and training programs to its employees to
enhance their skills and knowledge so as to maintain
their competitiveness. The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors
are monitored by the Board and the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Group appreciates the importance of maintaining
good relationships with its customers and suppliers to
meet its immediate and long-term business goals. The
Group values the feedback from its customers through
communication to address their concerns in a timely
manner. For suppliers, the Group assures the quality of
their delivered services and products.

During the Reporting Period, there is no circumstance
of any event between the Group and its employees,
customers and suppliers which will have a significant
impact on the Group’s business and on which the
Group'’s success depends.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group recognizes the importance of proper adoption
of environmental policies which is essential to the
attainability of corporate growth. The Board is responsible
for (i) making suggestions for the development of the
Company’s environmental, social and governance
(“ESG") objectives and monitoring the progress of their
implementation, and (ii) reviewing the development
trends of the ESG industry as well as evaluating and
making suggestions for major ESG-related decisions,
ensuring the Company complies with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements, and promoting implementation
of relevant policies by various departments of the
Company.
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Report of the Directors
EERWE

The detailed information regarding the Group’s
performance on environmental and social-related policies
and the compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group will be
disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of noncompliance
with such requirements. The Group has been
implementing system and allocating staff resources to
ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations.
The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the Mainland
China while the Company itself was incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Group’s operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, Bermuda and the Mainland China, and the
respective places of incorporation of the Company and
its subsidiaries. So far as the Board is concerned, there
were no material breaches of or non-compliance with
the relevant rules and regulations by the Group that have
significant impacts on the business and operations of the
Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group
are set out in the Note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements. None of these related party transactions
constitute any connected transactions as defined under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out in Notes 32 and 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the eighteen months
ended 30 June 2023 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 87 of this report.

No interim dividend was paid during the Reporting
Period.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2023
(for the year ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023

FANANEBEARE R @ RBERERT MR REA
SEREARENBMAIRIROETERAOFE B
RAFERE [BRIE - G REARE | R HE -

BFEERER
AEBRAETEERENEZERERZFREHE
[ o ARERBRARGRAFER BR—EETH
AINOER - AEBNEETERARBAUNEELTE
P EH B A RIETT - AR AR S TN B MAR L
HEOINEBHARXSMARRA (B R E
e ASEEALAETES ARERTEAMBUALAK
NEINMEMB AR B E MK 2 HEAR AR -
BESRAMAE  AREIWMENE RETETHAE
BEBREEEREAZENHRBERR LA -

RELBABAIRXS

BE

RASEBRERBBREPETIEABY T RXHFIEH

RERE ﬁ%ﬁ%WﬁMOE%%%EQ%WK%WLW
Al

MAIFTHAE T ZERBEERS -

B&
AEBRBEHR2MEE
K330

BEFRBEN R B RRME32

B EER DB
AEEBE_T_—FRA=ZTHALTNEAMEZE
BEIINETEZRAEERA -

AR B A I R R BB

EERTHMEBEE_ZE_=FA=THL+/\EAH
ERNARARE (BE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE:
&) o



MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s five largest customers accounted for about
79% of its revenue for the Reporting Period. In addition,
the largest customer of the Group accounted for about
34% of the Group’s revenue.

The percentage of the Group’s purchases attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers was about 51%. In
addition, the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
about 13% of the Group’s purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their
respective associates nor shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Board owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in the above
customers and suppliers at any time during the Reporting
Period.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in share capital and convertible
bonds during the Reporting Period are set out in Notes
35 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the 7% convertible bonds due 2023 as disclosed
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this report, and the share option scheme as
disclosed in the below section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group, or existed during the eighteen months
ended 30 June 2023.

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves during the Reporting
Period are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2023, the distributable reserves to the
shareholders in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
was Nil (As at 31 December 2021: Nil).
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Report of the Directors
EERWE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Group against all losses or liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
Such provisions were in force during the course of the
Reporting Period and remained in force as of the date of
this report. There is appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and officers
of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there is no statutory
restriction against the granting of such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the Reporting Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
shares during the eighteen months ended 30 June 2023.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme of the Company was adopted on
18 May 2012 (the “2012 Option Scheme”), and the limit
of granting option under the 2012 Option Scheme was
refreshed on 27 May 2015 and 13 June 2019 respectively.
The 2012 Option Scheme was valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing from 18 May 2012 and
was expired on 18 May 2022.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
2 August 2022, an ordinary resolution was passed by
the Shareholders to adopt a new share option scheme
(the “2022 Option Scheme”) for the Company. On the
basis of 3,088,442,199 shares of HK$0.025 each of the
Company in issue on the date of adoption of the 2022
Option Scheme, 308,844,219 shares of HK$0.025 each
of the Company are available for grant under the scheme
mandate limit. On 20 January 2023 and up to the date
of this report, the scheme mandate limit was 15,442,210
shares of HK$0.50 each of the Company (the “Shares”),
adjustment was made as a result of the effectiveness of
share consolidation.
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There is no outstanding share option of the Company
as at 30 June 2023. During the eighteen months ended
30 June 2023, no share option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the 2012 Option Scheme and
the 2022 Option Scheme.

(I) Summary of principal terms of the 2012 Option

Scheme

() Purpose of the Option Scheme
The purpose of the option scheme is to
provide incentives to Participants (as stated in
paragraph (ii)) to contribute to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract resources that are
valuable to the Group.

(i) Participants

Any person being an employee, officer,
buying agent, selling agent, consultant, sales
representative, marketing representative,
business representative of, supplier or
provider of goods or services to, or made
valuable contribution to the Group or its
holding company or subsidiary, including any
executive or non-executive director of the
Group or its holding company or subsidiary.

(i)  Maximum number of shares

The limit on the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the option scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company and/or its holding
company and/or its subsidiary must not
exceed 30% of the number of issued shares
from time to time.

(iv) Maximum entitlement of each Participant
Unless approved by shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, no Participant
shall be granted an option which would
result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
Participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the proposed date of grant for such
options would exceed 1% of the number
of shares in issue as at the proposed date of
grant.
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W)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

China Ecotourism Group Limited

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the option scheme at any
time during a period of not exceeding ten
years to be notified by the Board to the
grantee, such period to commence on the
date of grant or such later date as the Board
may determine and expiring on the last day
of the said period. Under the Option Scheme,
the Board may, at its discretion, prescribe a
minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 in cash is payable by the Participant
who accepts the grant of an option in
accordance with the terms of the option
scheme on acceptance of the grant of an
option.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under
the options to be granted under the option
scheme will be a price determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant at the
time the grant of the options is made to (and
subject to acceptance by) the Participant
and will be at least the highest of: (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the date of the grant (subject to acceptance)
of the option, which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant
(subject to acceptance) of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the shares.

The life of the Option Scheme

The option scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on
18 May 2012, after which period no further
options will be granted or accepted but the
provisions of the option scheme shall remain
in full force and effect in all other respects.
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(I) Summary of principal terms of the 2022 Option
Scheme

@

(i)

(i)

(v)

W)

Purpose of the Option Scheme

The purpose of this Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to the Participants
(those are valuable, common and market
recognition) for the contribution to the Group
and to enable the Group to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract other
personnel that are valuable to the Group.

Participants

Any person being an employee (whether
full-time or part-time), consultant of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, including
any executive or non-executive director of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, who
satisfies the criteria set out in this Scheme.

Maximum number of shares

The limit on the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the option scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company and/or its holding
company and/or its subsidiary must not
exceed 30% of the number of issued shares
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant
Unless approved by shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, no Participant
shall be granted an option which would
result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
Participant in any 12-month period up to and
including the proposed date of grant for such
options would exceed 1% of the number
of shares in issue as at the proposed date of
grant.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the option scheme at any
time during a period of not exceeding ten
years to be notified by the Board to the
grantee, such period to commence on the
date of grant or such later date as the Board
may determine and expiring on the last day
of the said period. Under the Option Scheme,
the Board may, at its discretion, prescribe a
minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.
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(i)

(vii)

(viii)

China Ecotourism Group Limited

Payment on acceptance of option

No consideration is required to be payable by
the Participant who accepts the grant of an
option in accordance with the terms of the
option scheme on acceptance of the grant of
an option.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under
the options to be granted under the option
scheme will be a price determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant at the
time the grant of the options is made to (and
subject to acceptance by) the Participant
and will be at least the highest of: (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the date of the grant (subject to acceptance)
of the option, which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant
(subject to acceptance) of the option; and (c)
the nominal value of the shares.

The life of the Option Scheme

The option scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 2
August 2022, after which period no further
options will be granted or accepted but the
provisions of the option scheme shall remain
in full force and effect in all other respects.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna

Mr. WU Jingwei

Mr. DI Ling

Mr. QIU Peiyuan

Mr. WU Ying Ha (resigned on 15 January 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

Dr. MENG Zhijun

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. WU Jingwei and Mr. CHAN Ming Fai shall
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
Biographies of Directors and Senior Management on
pages 18 to 20 of this report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the senior management of the
Group are set out in Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management on page 21 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
(including those interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have interests and short positions
under the provisions of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”),
were as follows:

ESRTRARREKSG - HEROREEZFERN
RERKR

RIZEZ=ZFRA=1tH BREARAZEREFLHE
(GR35 352G FAARE A BT 2 B CMATE - SIZE X Pr
EH EMRBME+AE(ETETAERTETESRR
ZEREST R (ME2EST A E@AA R A R B P -
ARBEBRERITHANA QR R ETABZERE (E
FAESF LA GRAIEXVER) Bkiy - BB MIE#EE
PR RIRRE S R ERPIRE SRR NAR
ERCRINE

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
issued share capital

Name of Director EEng Number of Shares (Note 2)

AR AT

ERITRA

Batk

Iigvil 4= (Kiat2)

Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna BR324 4,296,800 (L) 2.78% (L)

Mr. WU Jingwei RRREEAE 1,233,000 (L) 0.80% (L)

Mr. QIU Peiyuan b e A& 1,955,500 (L) 1.27% (L)
(Note 1) (f15#1)

Mr. HUANG Shenglan EHELE 5,500 (L) 0.01% (L)

Notes:

1. 955,500 Shares beneficially owned by Mr. QIU Peiyuan. For
the corporate interests, 1,000,000 Shares were held by Smart
Best International Corporation, a company which was wholly-
owned by Mr. QIU Peiyuan.

2. Calculation of percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital is based on the issued share capital of 154,422,109
Shares of the Company as at 30 June 2023.

3. The letter “L” denotes long position(s).

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had, or were
deemed under the SFO to have, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2023, as far as is known to the Directors,
according to the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) had interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company:
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R85 M B IRDIE 336 IRATR E AR 2 B CMATE
AT AL (BEFERITHAEGIN RAR R B AR
A RS AR

Approximate
percentage of

the Company’s
issued share capital

Name of shareholder BREEHE Number of Shares (Note 4)

HEAR QT
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Btk

& E (Krat4)

Ms. LAU Ting B2zt 55,032,782 (L) 35.64% (L)
(Note 1) (f1a£1)

Mr. CAO Junsheng ERELE 12,525,000 (L) 8.11% (L)
(Note 2) (fi1i#2)

China Carbon Neutral Development FERPMNEREEER AT 10,000,000 (L) 6.48% (L)

Group Limited (Note 3) (H1:E3)

Notes:

1. 51,406,379 Shares beneficially owned by Ms. Lau Ting (“Ms.
Lau”). For the corporate interests, 375,264 Shares were held
by Hang Sing Overseas Limited which was wholly owned
by Ms. Lau. 688,677 Shares were held by Strong Purpose
Corporation (“Strong Purpose”), a company which was
wholly owned by Ms. Lau and Mr. Chan Shing (“Mr. Chan”).
2,562,462 Shares were held by Glory Add Limited (“Glory
Add”) which was wholly owned by Favor King Limited, a
company which was wholly owned by Ms. Lau and Mr. Chan.

2. Such shares were held by Mao Yuan Capital Limited which
was wholly owned by Mr. CAO Junsheng.

3. A company which is listed in the Stock Exchange.

4. Calculation of percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital is based on the issued share capital of 154,422,109
Shares of the Company as at 30 June 2023.

5. The letter “L” denotes long position(s).

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, there was
no person (other than the Directors and chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other members of the Group.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the eighteen months ended 30 June
2023 was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the financial statements, there
was no contracts of significance (as defined in Rule 15
of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules) in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any Directors of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or
at any time during the Reporting Period.

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has an
unexpired service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

APPOINTMENT OF INEDS

The Company received each of the current INEDs
an annual confirmation of their independence in the
Reporting Period pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and as at the date of this report, still considers all of
them to be independent.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

The monthly director’s fee of each of Mr. WU Jingwei
and Mr. QIU Peiyuan was adjusted to HK$57,500 and
HK$20,000 with effect from 1 July 2023 and 1 September
2023 respectively.
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SHARE CONSOLIDATION

On 8 December 2022, the Board proposes to implement
the share consolidation (the “Share Consolidation”) on
the basis that every twenty issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.025 each of the Company was consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.50 each. The Share
Consolidation was approved by the Shareholders at the
special general meeting held on 18 January 2023 (the
“2023 SGM") and became effective on 20 January 2023.

Accordingly, the authorised share capital of the Company
has become HK$125,000,000 divided into 250,000,000
Shares with par value of HK$0.50 each. The Company
has a total of 154,422,109 issued Shares upon the Share
Consolidation became effective.

SUBSCRIPTION AND LAPSE OF THE SUBSCRIPTION
AGREEMENT

On 8 December 2022, the Company and the
subscriber entered into the subscription agreement
(the “Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which
the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue, an aggregate of 43,750,000 new Shares
(the “Subscription Shares”) at the subscription price of
HK$0.80 per Subscription Share (the “Subscription”). The
Subscription Shares will be allotted and issued pursuant
to the specific mandate.

Completion of the Subscription is conditional upon,
among other things, the approval of the Shareholders
at the 2023 SGM and the Share Consolidation having
become effective and the dealing in the shares having
commenced.

As the resolution regarding the Subscription of new
Shares under the specific mandate was not passed by
the Shareholders at the 2023 SGM, the Subscription
Agreement had lapsed accordingly. The Subscription
would not proceed as one of the conditions precedent to
the Subscription Agreement had not been fulfilled.
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UPDATE ON USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS HREBERREFRRO A EREREERN

ISSUE AND PLACING OF NEW SHARES

Further to the information disclosed in the 2022 interim BARFRBHA-ZE__FNATILHEN2022F % Bk
report of the Company dated 19 August 2022, the S BHPARAT__F+-ANBNAERABA-ZT
announcement of the Company dated 9 November 2022 TS A+ \BW2022FF R R EPATEE
and the 2022 second interim report of the Company BN 2021 FHRFIRRALE FHEMGFORFE (1R
dated 28 February 2023 in relation to the updates on BB B RE) HABM1.994E8x (B IEFED ME
the amounts utilised regarding the net proceeds (after AR - FISRIEFRERBRFINT

deducting the relevant expenses) of approximately

HK$199.40 million (the “Net Proceeds”) from the

rights issue and the placing of new Shares in 2021, the

movement in the use of Net Proceeds is stated as follows:

Revised Approximate
Approximate allocation of Approximate amount
amount utilized the unutilised amount revised utilised during Approximate
Approximate during the Net Proceeds allocation of the eighteen amount
amount of year ended during the the unutilised months ended unutilised
Intended use BRERZ Net Proceeds 31/12/2021  Reporting Period Net Proceeds 30/06/2023  as at 30/06/2023
HEHA BETHAE
HE31/12/2021 LHEND REAFRE  EE30/06/2023
HFERE LLEEH AERFRE NERE Lt NERHE #30/06/2023
FH [ERdk~ REFR Z&8 HERRER HREALH
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$’million
BEBRET BERET BERET RRBRETL BEBRET
(a) Partial repaymentof ~ (a) [EEHHIE 80.00 2622  General working (39.60) 14.18 -
the New Option 1 EHE1ES capital of
Bonds the Group
AEEZ
(b) Partial repayment (b) EEIHRE 30.00 30.00 Not applicable - - -
of an existing bank RITER (B T
borrowing (including )
interest)
(c) Set-Off (o) % 50.00 50.00 Not applicable - - -
TiER
(d) General working (d) AEEz—% 39.40 39.40 Not applicable 39.60 39.60 -
capital of the Group EEES TiER
Total: st - 199.40 145.62 53.78 -

As announced by the Company on 9 November 2022, BMARBR B —F+—RNBRRM - BT RE

certain unutilised Net Proceeds has been re-allocated. RS RIBFREKENFE - ISIER G E NG
Details of the change in the use of proceeds were set out BHRARBGBRR_ZE__F+—-ANBNRE
in the announcement of the Company dated 9 November SRIBFEAGEZASHRE - -

2022 and the use of Net Proceeds has been consistent
with the disclosure in the same announcement.
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PROPOSED DISPOSAL OF A PROPERTY

The Board announces that on 5 June 2023 (after trading
hours), Goldwide Limited (the “Vendor” or “Goldwide”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and HK Image Online Limited (the “Purchaser”) entered
into the provisional agreement for sale and purchase
(the “Provisional Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Purchaser has agreed to purchase and the Vendor
has agreed to dispose of Units 7, 8 and 9 on 33/F,,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, No.1 Harbour Road,
Hong Kong (the “Property”) at the consideration of
HK$309,800,000 (the “Consideration”) upon and subject
to the terms and conditions therein stated.

The Consideration of HK$309,800,000 will be payable in
the following manner:

(1) a deposit of HK$30,980,000 (the “Deposit”) has
been paid by the Purchaser to the Vendor upon
signing of the Provisional Agreement; and

(2) the balance payment of the Consideration in the
sum of HK$278,820,000 will be payable by the
Purchaser to the Vendor upon Completion, which
is scheduled to take place on or before 31 August
2023.

The Consideration was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the Vendor and the Purchaser
by reference to the market value of the Property taking
into account recent transaction prices for comparable
properties in the same area of the Property. The net
book value of the Property as at 31 December 2022 is
approximately HK$324,000,000.

The Property has been used as the head office and
principal place of business of the Company until the
Group vacated the Property and relocated its head office
and principal place of business since September 2021.
Since the Property is held for own use, there is no net
profit attributable to the Property for the two financial
years immediately preceding the Disposal.

The Directors have been assessing the property market in
Hong Kong and reviewing the Group’s options over the
Property. Having considered that the Property is currently
vacant and under-utilised, the Property is not essential for
the Group’s future operations and therefore the Disposal
will not have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
operations. The Directors believe that the Disposal
represents a good opportunity for the Company to realise
the value of the Property at a reasonable price and the
proceeds from the Disposal will reduce the indebtedness
of the Group and future interest expenses and thereby
will improve the financial position of the Group.
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The Directors consider that the Disposal and the terms
of the Provisional Agreement are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a
whole.

The consideration for the Disposal is HK$309,800,000,
after taking into account the estimated expenses
(including agency fees, legal fees, ancillary expenses
and taxes payable as a result of the Disposal) of
approximately HK$18,233,000, the net sales proceeds
of the Disposal will be approximately HK$291,567,000
(the “Net Proceeds”). The Company intends to apply the
Net Proceeds for repayment of firstly, the outstanding
bank and other borrowings and secondly, the rest of the
proceeds will be used to settle part of the convertible
bonds, and relevant interests accrued by the Group.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of
the Disposal is more than 75%, the Disposal constitutes a
very substantial disposal of the Company pursuant to Rule
14.06(4) of the Listing Rules and is, therefore, subject to
reporting, announcement, circular and the Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules.

However, as the Purchaser has failed to pay the Deposit
in accordance with the Provisional Agreement and has
failed to take appropriate action to the default despite
the Vendor’s repeated demands, thus the Provisional
Agreement has been terminated and the Disposal will
not proceed. As such, no circular will be issued and
despatched to the Shareholders, nor will the special
general meeting be convened and held in relation
thereto.

The Company has engaged lawyers to take legal action in
order to protect its rights.

For details of the Disposal, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 5 June 2023, 26
June 2023 and 4 August 2023.

On 29 August 2023, Goldwide issued a writ of summons
in the High Court of Hong Kong against, inter alias, HK
Image Online Limited (HCA 1378/2023) to claim a sum
of HK$30,980,000, being the Deposit to be paid by the
Purchaser; and cost and damages.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group is
set out on page 4 of this report.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group
and the employee retirement benefit costs charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the reporting
period are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors believe that none of the Directors or their
respective associates has any interest in any business
which competes or potentially competes, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. Having been made specific enquiries by the
Company, all the current Directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Reporting Period.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed amount of
public float during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.
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CONTROL CONTRACTS

History and background

In the early of 2008, with the objective to expand into the
AR A7 (“OPCO”) in the form of loan extended to
Ms. HE Ying and Mr. ]I Youjun (collectively referred to as
the “Nominees”) and entered into the Control Contracts
with the Nominees to control and extract all economic
benefits from OPCO for the benefit of the Group. The
Nominees were appointed as directors of OPCO or their
subsidiaries respectively to oversee its operation under the
instruction of the Company. The New Media Business,
as the current business of OPCO, involves mobile value-
added telecommunications business activities. According
to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise is prohibited from engaging in
any value-added telecommunications business. Therefore,
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise is ineligible to apply for
and obtain a value-added telecommunications business
operation permit. The Control Contracts were entered
into in order for the Group to manage and operate the
business of OPCO, under which all the business, financial
and operating activities of OPCO are managed by the
Group and all economic benefits and risks arising from
the business, financial and operating activities of OPCO
are transferred to the Group by means of consulting fees
payable by OPCO.

Principal terms of the agreements under the Control
Contracts

The Control Contracts comprise (i) the Loan Agreement;
(i) the Equity Pledge Agreement; (iii) the Exclusive Equity
Transfer Agreement; (iv) the Consulting and Servicing
Agreement; and (v) the Agency Agreement. The principal
terms of which are set out below:

Loan Agreement

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, 1t 7 & £ REHE B R A
a] ("WFOE") (as lender) provided loans to the Nominees
(as borrowers) respectively, among others:

- the Nominees were required to pledge their equity
interests in OPCO to WFOE, respectively;

- the loans have a term of 20 years;

- under any circumstances, the repayment of the
loans by the Nominees (in part or in full) can only
be satisfied by the transfer of the equity interests
in the respective OPCO (in part or in full) to
the WFOE (or the nominees of the WFOE). For
avoidance of doubt, regardless of whether the
repayment is made upon the expiry of the loans,
upon the request of the WFOE or under any other
circumstances, save for the aforesaid repayment
method, any other repayment methods adopted by
the Nominees shall be invalid;
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- the Nominees do not have the right to repay the
loans prior to its expiry without the written consent
of the WFOE; and

- in the event that the consideration for the transfer
of the equity interests in the OPCO (please refer
to the Exclusive Equity Transfer Agreement) is not
more than the aggregated principal amount of
the loans extended to the respective Nominees,
the loans will be interest-free. However, if the
consideration exceeds the aggregated principal
amount of the loans extended to the respective
Nominees, the interest of the loans shall be the
difference between the consideration and the
aggregated principal amount of the loans. Upon the
completion of the transfer of the equity interests in
the OPCO, the Nominees shall be deemed to have
satisfied all of their repayment obligations under the
Loan Agreements.

Equity Pledge Agreement
Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement entered into by
the Nominees, OPCO and WFOE, among others:

- the Nominees have pledged whole of the equity
interest in OPCO owned by them to WFOE to
guarantee the Nominees’ obligations and liabilities
owed to WFOE, including those under the Loan
Agreements; and

- WEFOE can exercise its rights under the Equity
Pledge Agreement and enforce the right to the
equity pledge, including, in the event of a breach,
requiring the Nominees to dispose of the equity
interest in OPCO, or asking the Nominees to
transfer the equity interest in OPCO to WFOE to
discharge the Nominees’ obligations and liabilities
towards WFOE if agreed by the parties.

Exclusive Equity Transfer Agreement

Pursuant to the Exclusive Equity Transfer Agreement
entered into by the Nominees, OPCO and WFOE, among
others:

- the Nominees and OPCO irrevocably grant the
WEFOE with the exclusive right to acquire or to
designate a qualified entity to acquire, the equity
interest in OPCO (in part or in whole) or the assets
owned by the OPCO (in part or in whole) at any
time. Subject to the full compliance of the relevant
PRC laws and regulations, WFOE has the full
discretion over the exercise time and manner of the
aforesaid purchase option. The consideration under
the purchase option is RMB50 million. Shareholders
of OPCO shall not grant any parties, other than
WEFOE or the designated entity, the same or similar
rights;
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- subject to the full compliance of the relevant PRC
laws and regulations, upon the exercise of the rights
attached to the purchase option, WFOE or the
designated entity has the right to acquire the entire
equity interest in OPCO or all the assets owned by
OPCO, and the consideration for the transfer will be
offset against the total outstanding amount of loans
under the Loan Agreement (details of which are set
out above); and

- in the event that, subject to the relevant PRC laws,
the consideration for the entire equity interest in
OPCO or all the assets owned by OPCO exceeds
the outstanding amount of the loans, the loans shall
bear interest and the consideration shall be offset
against the principal of the loans and the accrued
interest.

Consulting and Servicing Agreement
OPCO and WFOE entered into the Consulting and
Servicing Agreement. Pursuant to which, among others:

- OPCO engages WFOE to provide exclusive sales
and consultancy services for a period of twenty
years with an automatic extension for a further ten
years in absence of a written termination notice
from WFOE;

- unless WFOE consents in writing, OPCO shall not
accept sales and consultancy services provided by
any third party;

- OPCO warrants that OPCO will not transfer,
dispose, lease, encumber its assets (including
tangible and intangible, existing and assets to be
acquired), unless it is within the normal course of
business of OPCO; and

- OPCO shall not distribute any dividend to its
shareholders.
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Agency Agreement

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement between OPCO, the
Nominees and WFOE, the Nominees unconditionally
and irrevocably authorise the natural persons designated
by WFOE to exercise the rights of the Nominees as the
shareholders of OPCO, including but not limited to,
the right to attend shareholders’ meetings and exercise
the voting rights attached to the equity interest in
OPCO held by the Nominees. The Nominees also agree
to appoint the personnel recommended by WFOE as
director(s), general manager, finance director and other
senior management of the OPCO. The Nominees also
agree to act on the recommendations of the aforesaid
appointees. In addition, the Nominees and OPCO shall
grant to WFOE the rights to manage all the assets of
OPCO in the event of liquidation, termination of business,
deregistration and any business termination related
procedures. The Agency Agreement has a term of twenty
years with an automatic extension for a further one year.
WEFOE can terminate the Agency Agreement by serving a
30-day prior written notice.

Dispute Resolution

Each of the Control Contracts is governed by PRC laws
and provides for the resolution of disputes through
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of
the China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (FEIBEBRLEBEE HHEHZEZEF). The
arbitration shall take place in Beijing and the outcome
of the arbitration shall be final and binding. The Control
Contracts provide that arbitrators may award remedies
in rem over the equity interests in or assets of OPCO in
arbitration. They also provide that courts in the places
where the parties of the Control Contracts are located
shall have the power to grant interim remedies (such as
property reservation and evidence reservation) in support
of the arbitration pending formation of the arbitral
tribunal or on appropriate time. The PRC Legal Adviser
of the Company has also advised that the tribunal has
no power to grant injunctive relief or winding up order
under the PRC laws. Therefore, the dispute resolution
provisions of the Control Contracts do not include the
provision that an arbitral tribunal has the power to grant
injunctive relief as remedy.
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Succession

As advised by the PRC Legal Adviser of the Company,
the provisions set out in the Control Contracts are
also binding on the Nominees’ successors. Under the
Succession Law of the PRC, the statutory successors
include the spouse, children, parents, brothers, sisters,
paternal grandparents and the maternal grandparents
and any breach by the successors would be deemed to
be a breach of the Control Contracts. In case of a breach,
the Group can enforce its rights against the successors.
Therefore, the PRC Legal Adviser is of the view that (i) the
Control Contracts are sufficient for the protection of the
Group even in the event of death of any Nominee; and (ii)
the death of any Nominee would not affect the validity
of the Control Contracts, and the Group can enforce its
right under the Control Contracts against the successors
of the Nominees. The PRC Legal Adviser also confirmed
that under the PRC law, a natural person cannot declare
bankruptcy. Furthermore, pursuant to the Exclusive
Equity Transfer Agreement, the WFOE can exercise the
purchase option to acquire or to designate a qualified
entity to acquire, the equity interest in the OPCO (in part
or in whole) or the assets owned by the OPCO (in part
or in whole) at any time. Subject to the full compliance
of the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the WFOE shall
have the full discretion over the exercise time, manner
and exercise price of the aforesaid purchase option.

The Control Contracts in place during the reporting
period

The Control Contracts entered into between the Group,
OPCO and Nominees are continuously in place during
the reporting period.

Risk Factors

For the eighteen months ended 30 June 2023, there is
no unwinding of the Control Contract as the restrictions
that led to the adoption of the Control Contracts are not
removed. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 4 October 2013, risk factors in connection with
the Control Contracts are listed below (terms used in this
section shall have the same meanings as defined in the
Company’s announcement dated 4 October 2013 unless
otherwise stated):

- If the PRC Government determines that the Control
Contracts are not in compliance with applicable
PRC laws and regulations, our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be adversely
affected.

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023

A E

RIBARBRBOEEBERAER - 2H/1EA QTR
TEREBAZEANEBORS - REBE(PEAR KA
BEACE)NRTE  ETEAABRERRE  F& - K&
L 1R R B RIMERE - AR M AN Z E 2
RUIF/ER/ERZEHNERD - WARREER  AEEA
58 H 1T E B R 2R - B - R BUARBEME RS 3)
T ERAIRAF - REIES X R AREREE 2 Fz
AR (MERAREASHBE TS EEHIES O 22BN
o AEBATEAE A ZHA AR ATERIZERMS
WA T RN - FEDRRBEFE M ERRBETFEER - 8
AATAAEIWE - R4 - RIBBFE % - WFOE
AERITEARBEEERABERRENAERNER
fBE OPCO (2 #Bsk & B ) B s OPCO R A 1) (2 B3k
W) BEE -EZ2BTHEBBEEIRZZRNBERT
WFOETT{£ [ B # E M - 75 3\ RIT(E£E 1% WFOE
EHEORTE o

RBERRABERNEHEELN

AEEEOPCO R RIEAMRR IR HORAHE
HA—EBX -

[ B () &=

HE T _=FRA=TRHIEt/\EAHE BAREE
R EAN 2 ARRBILEDOE - BEZHIESRQ
WAREUH - BN ARR AR/ —_FT—=F+AOAZA
THE ATRAEBEHESONARERE (RXES
BFrfES AR AAAREARRARAS —T—=F
TAMNBZASEMAEEABHEREE)

- WMPBEBRFRREHES O EEAED
BARO) - RAINERS MBERR L XA R

ZEITMFE -



In the opinion of the PRC Legal Adviser of the
Company, the Control Contracts are in compliance
with existing PRC laws and regulations. There are,
however, substantial uncertainties regarding the
interpretation and application of current and future
PRC laws and regulations. Accordingly, there is no
assurance that the PRC regulatory authorities will
not take a view contrary to that of the PRC Legal
Adviser. In such event, the payment of services fee
from the OPCO to the WFOE as stipulated under
the Control Contracts could be hampered or even
terminated.

The Group may have to rationalise or restructure
the operations of the OPCO under the Control
Contracts or terminate the New Media Business
operated by the OPCO in extreme circumstances
where (i) the existing Control Contracts
are invalidated by the PRC courts for non-
compliance of applicable laws and regulations;
and/or (ii) the Company is unable to satisfy
the then applicable PRC laws and regulations,
which may include but not limited to “The
Regulations for the Administration of Foreign-
Invested Telecommunications Enterprises”. Such
rationalisation or restructuring or termination of the
New Media Business could result in the diversion
of management attention and the incurrence of
substantial operating and production costs which
could adversely affect the Group’s business, financial
condition or results of operations.

The Control Contracts may not be as effective as
direct ownership in providing operational control.

The Group relies on the Control Contracts with the
OPCO and its shareholders to operate the OPCO'’s
businesses. These Control Contracts may not be as
effective as direct equity ownership in providing the
Group with control and security over the OPCO.

However, under the Control Contracts, if the OPCO
or its registered shareholders fail to perform its, his
or her respective obligations under these Control
Contracts, the Group may have to incur substantial
costs and expend significant resources and time
to enforce those arrangements and rely on legal
remedies under the PRC laws.
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The Nominees may not act in the interests of the
Group and they may breach their contracts with
the Group.

The Nominees may breach their contracts with the
Group or otherwise have disputes with the Group,
the Group may have to initiate legal proceedings,
which involve significant uncertainties. Such
disputes and proceedings may significantly disrupt
the business operations of the Group, adversely
affect the Group's ability to control the OPCO and/
or otherwise result in negative publicity, and the
Group cannot provide assurance that the outcome
of such disputes and proceedings will be in the
favour of the Group.

The Control Contracts may be subject to scrutiny
by the PRC tax authorities, which may result in a
finding that the Group owes additional taxes than
calculated or are ineligible for tax exemptions, or
both, which could substantially increase the Group's
taxes and thereby reduce the Group’s net income in
the future.

Arrangements and transactions among related
parties may be subject to audits or challenges by
the PRC tax authorities. If any transactions of the
Group entered into between subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC, any of the OPCO and their
respective shareholders are determined by the PRC
tax authorities not to be on an arm’s length basis,
or found to result in an impermissible reduction
in taxes, the PRC tax authorities may adjust the
profits and losses of such OPCO, which may result
in additional taxes payable. In addition, the PRC
tax authorities may impose late payment fees and
other penalties to such OPCO for under-paid taxes.
Thus, the Group’s net income may be adversely and
materially affected if the tax liabilities of any the
OPCO increase or if it is found to be subject to late
payment fees or other penalties.
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In order to mitigate the risk as above mentioned, actions
have been taken by the Company, including but not
limited to, the following:

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4
October 2013, the PRC Legal Adviser of the Company
is of the opinion that each of the Control Contracts
complies with, and is not in breach of, the PRC laws and
regulations (including the Contract Law, the General
Principles of Civil Code and the Foreign Investment Law
(with effect from 1 January 2020) of the People’s Republic
of China). The Company has continually monitored the
development of PRC laws and regulations in relation to
the Control Contracts. Once there is substantive change
on the relevant law and regulation, the Group will use its
reasonable endeavors to fulfill the relevant requirement
including but not limited to the restructuring of the
OPCO'’s corporate structure and Control Contracts or
unwinding the Control Contracts.

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement, the Nominees agree
to appoint the personnel recommended by the Group
as director(s), general manager, finance director and
other senior management of the OPCO. The Nominees
also agree to act on the recommendations of the
aforesaid appointees. The OPCO’s senior management
reports regularly to the Group’s management about the
operation of the OPCO to improve the effective control
of the OPCO by the Group.

Each of the Control Contracts is governed by PRC laws
and provides for the resolution of disputes through
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of
the China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (FEIBEBREBEE ZHEHZEE). The
arbitration shall take place in Beijing and the outcome
of the arbitration shall be final and binding. The Control
Contracts provide that arbitrators may award remedies
in rem over the equity interests in or assets of OPCO in
arbitration. They also provide that courts in the places
where the parties of the Control Contracts are located
shall have the power to grant interim remedies (such
as property preservation and evidence preservation)
in support of the arbitration pending formation of the
arbitral tribunal or at an appropriate time.

The Company considers that tax risk of OPCO is low
as the current revenue and tax expense of OPCO are
in small size when compared to the whole Group as a
whole. The Group has maintained close contact with
the relevant tax authorities and, if needed, will use its
reasonable endeavors to discuss with the relevant tax
authorities and explain to them in order to minimize the
associated risks.
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Independent Non-executive Directors’ Confirmation
Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Control Contracts during the Reporting Period and
confirmed that:

- the transactions carried out during such reporting
period have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Control Contracts, so
that the profits generated by the OPCO have been
retained by WFOE;

- no dividends or other distributions have been
made by the OPCO to the holders of their
respective equity interests which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group;
and

- any new contracts entered into, renewed or
reproduced between the Group and the OPCO
during the relevant financial period are fair and
reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Group is
concerned and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

CHANGES OF COMPANY WEBSITE, COMPANY
SECRETARY, ADDRESS OF HEAD OFFICE AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
AND FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

The new website of the Company at www.ecotourgroup.com
was officially launched on 31 March 2022.

Mr. SHIU Wing Yan resigned as the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and Ms.
WONG Yin Ming was appointed as the Company
Secretary with effect from 1 August 2022.

The Company’s address of head office and principal place
of business in Hong Kong has changed to Unit 1801,
18/F., Landmark South, 39 Yip Kan Street, Wong Chuk
Hang, Hong Kong with effect from 25 October 2022.

The Company’s financial year end date has been changed
from 31 December to 30 June with effect from 28
December 2022. Accordingly, the next financial year
end date of the Company will be 30 June 2023 and
this audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company to be published covers the period of eighteen
months commencing on 1 January 2022 and ending on
30 June 2023. The change is to rationalise and mobilise
its resources with higher efficiency for the preparation of
results announcement as well as reports, details please
refer to the announcement dated on 28 December 2022.
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 August 2023, the Company announced that the
disposal of a property situated in Hong Kong with the
provisional agreement for sale and purchase entered on 5
June 2023 at a consideration of HK$309,800,000 was not
proceeded.

CHANGE OF AUDITOR IN THE PRECEDING THREE
YEARS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") resigned as
auditor of the Company with effect from 10 December
2021. Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”) was appointed
as the auditor of the Company with effect from 10
December 2021 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of HLB. Details of the change of auditor have
been disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 December 2021.

Crowe has resigned as auditor of the Company with
effect from 2 June 2023. McMillan Woods (Hong Kong)
CPA Limited (“McMillan Woods”) has been appointed
as the auditor of the Company with effect from 2 June
2023 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Crowe and to office until the conclusion of the
next annual general meeting of the Company. Details
of the change of auditor have been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 2 June 2023.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2023 have been
audited by McMillan Woods, which will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
CHAN Tan Na, Donna
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 22 September 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
is an essential element in enhancing the confidence
of shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
investors, employees, business partners and the
community as a whole and also the performance of the
Group. The Board will review the corporate governance
structure and practices from time to time and will make
necessary arrangements to ensure business activities and
decision-making processes are made in a proper and
prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company, at each
applicable time, has complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “Code”) for
the eighteen months ended 30 June 2023, except for the
deviations as disclosed in this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna

Mr. WU Jingwei

Mr. DI Ling

Mr. QIU Peiyuan

Mr. WU Ying Ha (resigned on 15 January 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai

Dr. MENG Zhijun

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised seven
Directors, four of whom are Executive Directors and
three of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.
Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal actions against the Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic
development of the Group. It also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group’s
business operations. Executive Directors are responsible
for running the Group and executing the strategies
adopted by the Board. The day-to-day running of
the Company is delegated to the management with
department heads responsible for different aspects of the
business/functions.
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The Independent Non-Executive Directors serve the
relevant function of bringing independent judgement on
the development, performance and risk management of
the Group.

Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for
all regular Board meetings to give all Directors an
opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is
addressed to the Board. All Directors have access to Board
papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information which enables the Board to make
an informed decision on the matters to be discussed
and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice
by any Director.

The Board considers that each Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company is independent in
character and judgement. The Company has received
from each Independent Non-executive Director a written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

The attendance of the Board Meeting, Committee
Meetings and General Meetings during the Reporting
Period are as follows:
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Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend

BHE/AEREEEENY
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual Special
Board  Committee Committee ~ Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EER #ENKZEE FMZESE REZEES RREF eSS
L EES EE Ef S| S
Executive Directors HTES
Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna R A3 + 717 - I 1/1 1/1 /1
Mr. WU Jingwei RRBEE 7/7 - - - 11 mn
Mr. DI Ling BELE 717 - - - 7 7
Mr. QIU Peiyuan b4 7/7 - - - 1N 1N
Mr. WU Ying Ha HERELE
(resigned on (R=Z==%F
15 January 2022) —Bt+RAEL) - - - - - -
Independent Non-Executive BIH#TES
Directors
Mr. HUANG Shenglan BRELE 7/7 5/5 7 mn 171 7
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai ﬁ% B 4 7/7 5/5 7 n n 7
Dr. MENG Zhijun AEEET 7/7 5/5 - - n 7
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CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code provision C.2.1 of the Code requires that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

During the period from 14 January 2022 to 30 June
2023, the Chairperson, Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna served
as both the Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer,
such practice deviated from code provision C.2.1 of the
Code. Following the resignation of former chief executive
officer in early 2022, the Company has not appointed
the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
is looking for a suitable candidate to meet the needs of
the effective operation of the Group. The Chairperson
and the executive Directors are responsible to oversee
the management of day-to-day operations of the Group
until the appointment of the chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board is reviewing the effectiveness of
the structure to balance the power and authority of the
Board and the management from time to time.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Although Non-executive Directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term as is stipulated in Code
provision B.2.2, all of them are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
(the “Bye-laws”). The Board will ensure the retirement of
each Director, other than the one who holds the office
as Chairperson or Managing Director, by rotation at least
once every three years. The Chairperson is not subject to
retirement by rotation as is stipulated in Code provision
B.2.2 as the Board considers that the continuity of office
of the Chairperson provides the Group a strong and
consistent leadership and is of great importance to the
smooth operations of the Group. Mr. WU Jingwei and
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai are subject to retirement by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001. As at
30 June 2023, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, Mr. HUANG Shenglan, Mr. CHAN Ming Fai
and Dr. MENG Zhijun. All of them are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. HUANG Shenglan. The Board
considers that each Audit Committee member has
broad commercial experience and there is a suitable
mix of expertise in business, accounting and financial
management in the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee’s functions include:

o to review and monitor financial reporting and the
reporting judgement contained in them;

o to review financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control system, accounting policies and
practices with management;

J to oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control
system; and

° to nominate and monitor external auditors and
provide advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the
Reporting Period under review and the external auditor,
Crowe (CPA) Limited (“Crowe”) (resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 2 June 2023) had
attended one meeting.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with
the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and auditing, internal controls and
financial reporting matters. The audited financial results
of the Group for the 18 months ended 30 June 2023
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee has been posted on
the Company’s website and is made available on request.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10
August 2006 with specific written terms of reference
which deal with its authority and duties. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee has been
posted on the Company’s website and is made available
on request. The Remuneration Committee currently
consists of three members, namely Ms. CHAN Tan Na,
Donna, the Executive Director, and Mr. HUANG Shenglan
and Mr. CHAN Ming Fai, both being Independent Non-
executive Directors. The chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. HUANG Shenglan.

The Remuneration Committee mainly responsible
for determining the policy for the remuneration of
Directors and the senior management, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy. The Remuneration
Committee has the delegated responsibility to determine
the remuneration packages, in consultation with the
Chairperson, the Deputy Chairman, the Managing
Director or the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
of individual Executive Directors and Senior Management.
One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held
during the Reporting Period for abovementioned issue.
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In determining the emolument payable to Directors, the
Remuneration Committee took into consideration factors
such as time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, abilities, performance and contribution of the
Directors to the Group, the performance and profitability
of the Group, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry, the prevailing market/employment conditions
and the desirability of performance-based remuneration.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
March 2012 with specific written terms of reference
which deal with its authority and duties. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee has been posted
on the Company’s website and is made available on
request. The Nomination Committee currently consists of
three members, namely Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna, the
Executive Director, and Mr. HUANG Shenglan and Mr.
CHAN Ming Fai, both being Independent Non-executive
Directors. The chairperson of the Nomination Committee
is Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna.

The Nomination Committee mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors and identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and making recommendations to the Board on the
selection. One meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held to review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy during the Reporting Period, to review
the annual confirmation of independence submitted by
the independent non-executive directors and assessed
their independence, and to review and recommend the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 2 August 2022.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which establishes written guidelines
for nomination committee to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships with reference to
the formulated criteria.
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SELECTION CRITERIA

When evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships, the members of the Nomination
Committee or the Board will consider the criteria
including the highest personal and professional ethics
and integrity of candidates; qualifications of candidates
including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategies; the Board Diversity
Policy and any measurable objectives adopted by the
Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board; willingness of candidates to devote adequate
time to discharge duties as a Board member and other
directorships and significant commitments; in case of
nomination of an independent non-executive Directors,
assessing the candidate’s independence under the Listing
Rules; and such other perspectives appropriate to the
Company’s business.

These criteria are for reference only, and not meant to
be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

NOMINATION PROCEDURES

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board identifies
potential candidates including but not limited to
internal promotion, re-designation, referral by other
member of the management and external recruitment
agencies and/or advisors. The Nomination Committee
then develops a short list of candidates and agrees on
proposed candidate(s). Proposed candidate(s) will be
asked to submit the necessary personal information and
biographical details. The Nomination Committee may
request candidates to provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary. The Nomination
Committee will, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the personal information
(or relevant details) of the proposed candidate(s),
evaluate such candidate(s) based on the criteria as set out
above to determine whether such candidate(s) is qualified
for directorship. For any person that is nominated by
a shareholder for election as a Director at the general
meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee
will evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship. The nomination committee
retains the discretion to establish the relative weighting of
such criteria, which may vary based on the composition,
skill sets, age, gender and experiences of the collective
Board rather than on the individual candidate for the
purpose of diversity perspectives appropriate to the
requirement of the Company’s business. If the process
yields one or more desirable candidates, the Nomination
Committee will rank them by order of preference based
on the needs of the Company and reference check of
each candidate (where applicable). The Nomination
Committee will propose the appointment of such
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candidates to the Board for consideration. The Board will
review the qualifications of the relevant candidates for
determining the suitability to the Group on the basis of
his qualifications, experience and background.

MONITOR AND REVIEW

The Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the Nomination Policy and report
to the Board when necessary. Also, the Nomination
Committee will review the Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Nomination Policy and will discuss any revisions that may
be required, and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION
The annual remuneration range of the Senior
Management are set out as below:
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Number of
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the eighteen months ended 30 June 2023, the Group
had engaged the Company’s external auditor, McMillan
Woods, and for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group had engaged Crowe as the Company’s external
auditor, to provide the following services and the
respective fees charged are set out as below:
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Audit for the Group REBEEE 1,680,000 1,100,000
Non-audit services IEFFT RS - -
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the
responsibilities of the external auditor to the Shareholders
are set out on pages 83 to 86 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is to perform the corporate governance
duties with written terms of reference which include the
applicable code provisions as set out in the Code. The
Board has reviewed the compliance with the Code and
disclosure of the Company in this Corporate Governance
Report and review the policy for corporate governance
of the Company and duties performed by the Board.
All Directors are able to make further enquiries and
they may seek independent professional advice and
consultation when necessary. To enhance proper and up-
to-date understanding of the Company’s operations and
business, legal and other regulatory requirements and
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of Directors, the Company has provided the Directors
with and kept them informed of the regulations, policies
and other requirements of domestic and overseas
regulatory bodies in relation to corporate governance.
The Directors and the Senior Management diligently
fulfilled their responsibilities and actively took part in
trainings and continuing professional development,
which led to the improvement of governance of the
Company. The Company has received training records of
all current Directors who have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills during the Reporting Period as
below:
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Records
Received
EEEN
1% 5 52 8%
(Note)
(Bt7)
Executive Directors HITES

Ms. CHAN Tan Na, Donna PR A 2z = v
Mr. WU Jingwei RREEE 4
Mr. DI Ling BEEE v
Mr. QIU Peiyuan Ut o & v

Independent Non-Executive Directors  BMFHITEE
Mr. HUANG Shenglan mHELE v
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai PREFIE & A v
Dr. MENG Zhijun AEEELT v

Note: Finished the professional development programs including
those provided by the Company in relation to the Corporate
Governance, Ordinance Updating, Market Information
Updating and Case Study.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsibility for establishing, maintaining
and monitoring effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The management is
delegated with the responsibility from time to time to
implement the Board’s policies on risk management and
internal control. Detailed procedures are developed by
the management. Each department is responsible for the
assessment of individual types of risks arising under their
areas of responsibilities and is also required to keep the
senior management informed of material developments
of the department’s business and implementation of
the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular
basis. The Group’s internal control system is designed
to provide cost-effectiveness and reasonable protection,
which safeguards the Group’s assets and maintains the
integrity of the accounting and reporting systems. The
Board periodically evaluates major controls and risks and
where necessary, retain external professional services to
evaluate or seek improvements to the internal control
system. The Group has not maintained an internal audit
department. The Board considers that the existing
systems enable to carry out enough analysis and appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Board will
continuously (at least annually) review the necessity of
setting up an internal audit department. The Group’s risk
management and internal control systems include a well-
established organisational structure with clearly defined
lines of responsibility and authority of departments. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board had reviewed once the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2023.
The review covered all material control areas including
financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. The Board considers that
the Group has maintained effective and adequate risk
management and internal control systems in all major
areas.

The Executive Directors assess and decide whether
the relevant information of the Group is considered
inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as
reasonably practicable pursuant to the Listing Rules and
the SFO.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board will take
into account, among others, the Group’s actual and
expected financial performance, retained earnings and
distributable reserves of the Company as required by
laws, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans, liquidity
position, Shareholders’ interests, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and
other internal or external factors that may have an impact
on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group and other factors that the Board deems
appropriate.

Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out above, dividends
may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a
financial year or period as interim dividend, final dividend,
special dividend and any distribution of net profits that
the Board may deem appropriate. Any final dividend for
a financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval.
The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited
and shall revert to the Company in accordance with the
Bye-Laws. Declaration and payment of dividend shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the
Board and subject to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws
and any other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at
any time. The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in
no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at
any time or from time to time.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of our
Board that are relevant to the Company’s business
growth. The selection of candidates will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merits and contributions that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

IR S BR

FREEEERERBELEERECHEE BEERE
ZR (AT BRE) AKEZEREBRMBFRE A5E
BOAPIME 2B F W KAl Dk - EEEARFR
BRI BRIARKERE RBDERAMN RS
ERLERR AEEXEKBERYLAMAIETE
AEEEBIMBRALMR ARSI ERRARE
ERRRBEIHMAE -

BERNEE 2 FBARRAR B fEE R EAE - EFRA
KU BFERPRZER/ RERTHRS - REAKS -
FrRIE R EMESZRA R REE 2 AR EERR
B ARV BEE 2 EMRBREHARBIRIE - X
REAIEBRSIABREXREZTRRREE 2 HMT
HE IR SRS IS o ERREIRZ IR BEHL UL - W
REABERADUERARR -FEREKNEERES
PERERBERAE BEAETAREARE ERMAIN
EAERER - RARARA -

EERBTHRIBEREK  AZREBHRBEEREALE
BT BT R SHAS R BB 2 A o IR B BUR
TERARBDEERORN 2EHE R I G AEM
FRLARRBBEEMEAFRARTIRFERKRE °

EERZUIBR

ARFERAESHZTAREK S EERMEREAR
NAEBRERAENEZRZ TLBHMNEE FEN T
EoREANBESER -RIZTENAE  BHFEE
TRAMS Fie EBER BEBER Bk BXELR -
EE - AR R R FE - REORTHENEEREASG
REZRHRNEHMER

FEAEHEREARAT  2022/2023 F 3

59



60

Corporate Governance Report
TEERHRE

Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and
skills, including overall management and strategic
development, business operation, accounting and
financial management. They obtained degrees in various
majors or certifications, including in economics, business
administration, marketing, law and accounting. The
Company has three independent non-executive Directors
with different industry backgrounds, representing more
than one-third of the Board. As at 30 June 2023, we
maintained a 157:52 ratio of men to women in our
workforce. As regards gender diversity of the Board and
senior management, we have one female Director and
six male Directors, and one out of two members of our
senior management is female.

The Board is satisfied that the Group has achieved its
measurable objectives in terms of Board diversity during
the Reporting Period with (i) at least one Director
being female; (ii) at least one third of the Board being
independent non-executive Directors; (iii) at least
one Director has accounting or other professional
qualifications; and (iv) at least one Director is under the
age of 50.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring
the diversity of our Board. The Nomination Committee
will monitor the implementation of the diversity policy
and review the Board diversity policy from time to time
to ensure its continued effectiveness.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code
throughout the Reporting Period.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG Yin Ming has been appointed as the
Company Secretary since 1 August 2022 and she had
fulfilled the requirement of rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the
Listing Rules during the Reporting Period. She has
attained more than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Reporting Period.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Reporting Period under review, there was no
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023

BPMESHEAIENMBNREMAS  BREEEHE
MBRER XHEL SANYBEESTHE -
ESTXRBREXNBUATE  BRLES ITHEE-
MHEH ERNEFEF - ARBREA=ZLTRATES
SHNBIFATEE HEFRABN=DZ2— UL
HE_T_=FRA=1+H BMANEIHKEHP IR
L PIRFF157:52 - REE R R SREEER LR
Zrltms BB - BXUEFNLEUEER S
REBANEBRBE Dz —REIKE-

BEERARAE AEENREHAEEBR TEERZ tL
MAEEREZE  HpaiE: (2L —REE AT i)
BERPEL =D —ABUIERNITES  (iV2L— %
EFEASHREMEEER  R(VEL—BESHF
BRAESOBRIAT

REZESRARREZTANZ T RAZEEKE
RZTTEBRNERER A TR BRI EERZTEEER
PAREREFFEE K

EEWEERS

ARTEEMRETAEAREEEEARDBESHT
ATA EAZBEEELARSNE  2REFRR
RENBERE A EATRETAUFRORELS

k5
o o

NGIE =

BHEALXTE S —F N\ —HHEEZTARAWE
R|EHRFTE LHEBNE3281ERFE 329G F -
BTN REHACESBBI1S/) 2 ABEEE -

|ATM )
RIBEER - AREREXAERE R -



INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintain an open and
effective investor relations policy and to update investors
on relevant information/developments in a timely
manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements.
Briefings and meetings with institutional investors and
analysts are conducted from time to time. The Company
also replied the enquiries from Shareholders timely. The
Directors host the annual general meeting each year
to meet the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.
Shareholders may whenever it thinks fit require a special
general meeting to be called. Pursuant to Section
74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Board,
notwithstanding anything in its Bye-laws shall, on the
requisition of members of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as
at the date of the deposit carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting of the
Company. The requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed
by one or more requisitionists. To put forward proposals
at an annual general meeting or a special general
meeting, the Shareholders shall submit a written notice of
those proposals with the detail contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Principal Place of Business. The
request will be verified with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars and Transfer Office in Hong Kong and upon
its confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The corporate website of the Company
(http://www.ecotourgroup.com) provides an effective
communication platform via which the public and
investor community can enjoy fast, easy access to
up-to-date information regarding the Group. Enquiries
to the Board or the Company are welcome and can
be addressed to the Investor Relations Department
by mail to Unit 1801, 18/F., Landmark South,
39 Yip Kan Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong or by
fax to (852) 2136 6608.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Report covers the Group’s overall performance in
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") aspects of
the head office in Hong Kong, office in Beijing and two
offices in Guangzhou for the eighteen months ended
30 June 2023, and demonstrates its commitment to
sustainable development.

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the “ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules. The environmental key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) disclosed are referenced to the
calculation method adopted in Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock
Exchange. Information relating to the Group’s corporate
governance practices are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 50 to 61 of this annual
report.

The Group has established the ESG working group, which
was formed by the Human Resource and Administrative
Department of Hong Kong, Beijing and Guangzhou, and
is responsible for collecting data and information for the
preparation of the ESG Report. All data and information
disclosed in the ESG Report was obtained from the
Group’s internal records. The Report was reviewed and
approved by the Board.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views relating
to its businesses and ESG issues. In order to understand
and address stakeholders’ concerns, the Group has
been maintaining a close communication with its
stakeholders. The Group takes stakeholders’ expectations
into consideration in formulating its businesses and ESG
strategies by utilizing diversified engagement methods
and communication channels, which are shown as below:

Stakeholders Expectations

K& e
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BARARE
ABFERETASENERSER  NEBEHSER 1t
RAMERTMEEMBER BE_T_=F A=+
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ERERI
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FHRARCEHNAFRESOEZF 61 AN[EXERR
CRPA

AEBERYBES  LRFMEIMNA D ERNRITEEL
HRKMESG T E4 B E WEHIEFME B LA EHAKRESG
WA AESGHREFHENMBERBENEEHRELRE
BH AL ARECHEEREEMALME -

FEHESHR
AEEERZIFNERAHANEEXBMESCEENE
Eo BT THRUBBERNENRE  AKE—HEB
TRMZEFAMBEBRRBERFNERBEYER -
AREBEGTEEBNESCRBHTER T X HNHENH
E MR :

Communication Channels

BERE

Shareholders and investors .

BREMBREE
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Complying with relevant laws .

and regulations
Disclosing latest information of
the corporate in due course
Financial results
Corporate sustainability
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Annual general meeting and
other shareholder meetings

Financial reports

Announcements and circulars
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Expectations

RIR - HERERRE

Communication Channels

& e BERE
Customers ° Product and service responsibility e Customer service hotline and email
° Customer information and o Meetings
privacy protection o Corporate website
U Compliant operation J Financial reports
'R e EmMRBEE s  EFPRBAGMETFHM
e  EPEEMRENLRE e &
o AMBIE o REIMEUL
o MBWmE
Employees o Health and safety . Channels for employees’ feedback
° Equal opportunities (forms, suggestion boxes, etc.)
° Remuneration and benefits o Trainings, seminars, and briefing
° Career development sessions
o Performance appraisals
== o REEZE s RERBARE(RRE BEMEF)
s HEen% o Bl HANSNENE
o HbMEA s REEHZ
o BE#ERE
Suppliers ° Fair competition o Supplier management meetings and
° Business ethics and reputation events
Cooperation with mutual o Supplier on-site-audit and
benefits management system
HER o RFHF s HEREEEZNLY
s BEERNEER o HERRSERNEESE
e EHR&1E
The Government and o Business ethics o Regular work meetings
regulatory bodies . Complying with relevant laws o Regular performance reports
and regulations
BENEERE s MBWERER s TEHIEEH
o B TMHBIARER s  EHRBABE
Community, Non-governmental e Giving back to society o Public or community events
organizations and media . Environmental protection o Community Investment Program
o Compliant operations o ESG reports
HE - FERAASNRE o [EfEHE o AHIMHEED
e  RRRFR#E o HERAEFE
. BREKRE o ESGHE
The Group aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to AEESEERZFMNESIEATENZEGCRE IR
improve the ESG performance and create greater value FEZOHEAIEE RNEE -

for the wider community on a continuous basis.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective
major functions have participated in the preparation of
the Report in order to assist the Group in reviewing its
operations, identifying relevant ESG issues, and assessing
the importance of related matters to its businesses
and stakeholders. The Group has compiled a survey in
accordance with the identified material ESG issues to
collect information from relevant departments, business
units and stakeholders of the Group.

The following table is a summary of the Group’s material
ESG issues:

, Social and Governance Report

EEMNFL
AEESEFEBEIFNERENEESR T RAREN
e Wi AREEELELRN P HBESGE
BANHEEREREAEENEBMEHOENER
e AEERBECHBNBRESCGHEET THE - N
WAREBEMEBEEF  ZBHAPIMSHNERERES

TRAAEEEAESCEBZIE ¢

Environmental Social
B HE
o Emissions control o Employment practices
o Waste management o Occupational health and safety
o Energy management o Training and career development
J Water management o Prevention of child and forced labour
o Climate change o Environmental and social risks of suppliers
J Fair and open procurement
o Customer services
o Privacy protection
o Anti-corruption
o Community investment
o BEPUIESI o [BIEEH
o  EWERE s RBIXREEREZE
e  HEREHE o IBPIMBEHER
o KEHE e TEHEIMAHILT
s RixEM o HEMNRRMLEER
o RFRFKRE
s  EPRHK
o  REMLR
. RE&S
e HERKRE

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that
it has established appropriate and effective management
policies and internal control systems for ESG issues, and
confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance
with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Being engaged in the lottery industry, natural and health
food, and ecotourism business in the People’s Republic
of China, the Group attaches great importance to good
environmental management and strives to fulfil the social
responsibility of the Group. The Group is dedicated to
protecting the environment by integrating environmental
mitigation measures into the Group’s operational
strategy, such measures cover pollution prevention,
wastes reduction, energy saving, etc. The Group has also
set the following environmental objectives to guide the
overall direction in operating sustainably:

o Fully comply with applicable environmental
regulations and other relevant requirements
implemented by the Group;

o Drive the development of technologies
and engineering as well as the design of
environmentally-friendly products in order to
reduce negative environmental impacts;

J Implement energy-saving measures, recycle
resources, prohibit the use of harmful substances
and promote energy consumption reduction
during the stages of product research and project
planning;

o Provide environmental training for the employees
to enhance their environmental and energy-saving
awareness; strive for continuous improvement in
environmental management through monitoring
and education; and

o Share information in a highly transparent manner
with stakeholders who are concerned about the
Group’s environmental achievements and policies.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations including but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Energy Conservation
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 311 of Laws of Hong Kong) and
Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty) Ordinance (Cap. 611
of Laws of Hong Kong).

BRIR - S RERRS

BB

AEBREPELREE  RARRBRRMMAERIKESR
FEERRENRREE UENETHLEET - A%
BIEEMREFENRE R AN KB E S BES ARE
RE - BREMHSR RDEY  SHHEREREE - K
SEERE TATREBBRASESIAIHERRNERTH

o EBTHRARBASNAEE PR AT EAA
BAMRE

o WBRMEIRER RFARRER HLHRE

MAERPE

s HEMMBERIABHRIBRESD

EEEaEiE i - BIR
Bl ZIHFEREEYME RIBEER

HFER D

o REBRMGRRFRIFY EREFANRRLEEEE
FHEBEELRHETHNERRERE &

« AMEAREESRRMEEOTROEUDE
BOHRDFES -

RMEHAN  AEBWAREREGTATETIRERBE
BER  BREETRERACPEAREMBEIIRBREE)
(REARKEMBELEETRE) (ERSREHEHN(F
BEFIEIN E) ROTB 3| Erdd (FREE ) E6) (F
BEBIE611E) -
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EMISSIONS CONTROL

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group’s major source of exhaust gas emissions was
originated from petrol consumed by vehicles. Thus, the
Group has developed clear guidelines in relation to daily
vehicular operation. The Group periodically records
and monitors the fuel consumed, educates employees
to turn off engines for idling vehicles, and conducts
regular vehicle inspections and maintenance to enhance
vehicle efficiency. The Group’s exhaust gas emissions
performances were as follows:

, Social and Governance Report

B R4z

BER B K

AEEN T ZRERIEMEREEMATBFENTH - Fib
AEECHEARAEEMETHRERS - AEES
EHRE REREERNNSE BHEREFERFHERE
SIE  WERETEWBREMMBGE - ARITHERGE -
AEBHBERFMRBANT

For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December

Type of Exhaust Gas Unit 30 June 2023 2021 2020

BE-Z—= HE+Z-—A=+—8H

AA=+A IFFE

BERES B F+NERHBE T —F T -TF
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) kg
RA{LA ¥ (NO) T 297.07 154.04 145.67
Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg
BRI A (S0, % 0.73 0-50 044
Particulate matters (PM) kg
FERT ) (PM) T 13.25 14.55 13.74
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions were
direct GHG emissions generated from petrol consumed
by vehicles (Scope 1), and indirect GHG emissions
consumed from purchased electricity (Scope 2). To
reduce GHG emissions during operation, the Group
has actively adopted energy and water conservation
measures which are described in the sections headed
“Energy Management” and “Water Management” of the
Report. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total
GHG emissions intensity has increased by approximately
23.32%. The Group’s GHG emissions performances were
as follows:

RIR - HERERRE

BEREBHEM
AEBEMNETEBTREBEMIREEHEERNTHME
ENERBEEREHR([E8E—]) MEEMBEE N
EENRELEREHER(HE =] - AT RLVELSR
AR EREBHER  AEBBERRIT & L6EIRFE
WK BEEEBRARENTEREE] MK
B MoRHL  AEBEMNAERELENRLEATY
23.32% - AEBMBEREBHERKRBOT :

For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December

Indicator’ Unit 30 June 2023 2021 2020

BE-%—-= BET-_HA=1t—H

AA=1H FFE

BR B L+ N\EAME —E_—F —T-FF
Scope 1 tCO.e
wE— W= S B 137.6 82.4 78.9
Scope 2 tCOze
wE— W — e B 97.7 108.4 121.7
Total tCOze
=t W= S 2353 190.8 200.6
Total GHG emissions intensity? tCO.e/employee
BERRFREERE - GLHEE R 3 095 093
Notes: Mt
1. GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide 1. BREREBHMBEBEA—GLEREERT ENETRA AT

equivalent and based on, including but not limited to,
The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix II:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the
Stock Exchange, Global Warming Potential Values from
the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014 (ARS5), the latest
emission factors of China’s regional power grid basis, and
2019 Sustainability Report published by Hong Kong Electric
Investments.

2. As at 30 June 2023, the Group employed 209 full time
employees (31 December 2021 and 2020: 201 and 215).
These data are also used for calculating other intensity data.

RERPARGMERCEBERDSEMTNOEETRER
BEEE XS ERERE) - A L E
BESG & 2 fifik — « BRIBRISHEMURIRERIES]) - BT
MRIEECEPIR B S RMN —F—NFFE IR HRE (ARS)
(EHBREEE) TEREEEMOSFTHREAT AR
HERENREBRMI(ZE-NEUREERBRS) -

RZB-_=FXA=-1+H AEE2BEB£E209% (=T
Z—FRZZFEZEF+ZA=TH 2008 X215%) © HIE
MEAREMZEREZE -
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WASTE MANAGEMENT

Hazardous Wastes

Due to the Group’s business nature, it had not generated
significant amount of hazardous wastes during the
Reporting Period. Despite the Group has generated an
insignificant amount of hazardous wastes, the Group has
established guidelines in governing the management and
disposal of such wastes. In case if there are any hazardous
wastes produced, the Group is required to engage a
qualified chemical waste collector to handle such wastes,
which complies with relevant environmental rules and
regulations.

Non-hazardous Wastes

With the aim of minimizing the environmental impacts
of non-hazardous wastes generated from its business
operations, the Group has implemented relevant
measures to handle such wastes and has launched
different reduction initiatives. As an office-based
company, the Group consumes a relative significant
amount of paper during our business operation. The
Group thereby focuses on reducing paper consumption
by introducing various paper-saving measures, such as
printing paper on both sides, utilizing electronic means
for disseminating information and handling documents,
and promoting telephone and video conferences for
daily communication, etc. During the Reporting Period,
the Group’s total non-hazardous wastes intensity has
remained steady at approximately 0.02 tonnes per
employee. The Group’s non-hazardous wastes discharge
performances were as follows:

, Social and Governance Report

By EE

BEEY

HRARENEBIEE  BRREHARELERERE
By BEAKSEELTNEEEMEEFREIE  EX
SEHOKREYTERNRERMAEYER - MELTE
MBEEY ARBEEARGEEERNIEEMKRERT
HEABRERNEANBE TREGHEY

RTEXEEHRDEHELSREENESEYLIRE
M e AERECRIAREEEIEILEREY - WA
TARBBHHE I AKBEER—RAMAESENAR -
EXBEBLBETRHEAEHRNEMNMR - Bt - K5F
B35 B SRR & TR A A AR OR BV 18 3 SOR A R SR BB RE -
WMEEITE  FIBEF I AEERESMEEX M - UE
AEEAEMNREEREARARS NREHRA AKE
MESEMEERTTIE REBMLEBITH0.020 - X5
B EEREMIERERAT

For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December
Type of non-hazardous wastes Unit 30 June 2023 2021 2020
yp J
E-E-=F HEZ+-_A=+—H
ANB=1+H IEFFE
BEBEYESE B IE+NERHE —E—F —EEF
General Wastes tonnes
—RRREY) g 1.27 1.25 1.26
Paper tonnes
4t o B 1.47 2.67 0.46
Total non-hazardous wastes tonnes
R B S E 1.44 3.92 1.72
Total non-hazardous wastes intensity tonnes/employee
mERNEETE W,/ & 8 0.02 0.02 0.01
Use of Resources BRER

The Group actively promotes the effective use of
resources, the Group has implemented the Workplace
Management Regulation and adopted various energy-
saving practices to achieve the goal of maintaining an
environmentally friendly workplace.
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Energy Management

The Group has formulated rules to achieve the goal of
electricity saving, such measures include encouraging
employees to set air-conditioners at a preferred
temperature which reduces the cooling load of the
air-conditioning system, turning off lightings and
air-conditioners in unoccupied areas, switching off
computers and other office equipment after operation
hours, and purchasing energy efficient electronic
appliances. During the Reporting Period, the electricity
consumption intensity has decreased by approximately
39.5%. The Group’s energy consumption performances
were as follows:

RIR - HERERRE

HREE
REBESIERINERANAENEZ P BES
BEEBAREREEATIEE  UWRLARESHN
AAERE BEEAGFERMFORARBNER - T
BB EMB ARG MBEEMOERMNES -
RSB BEEE TE439.5% - NEBEMEERH
FERIFWOT :

For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December
Unit 30 June 2023 2021 2020
BE_Z_-_=F% BHET-_A=+—H
AA=1H I
B LE+NEABE —EZ—F —TTF
Purchased electricity MWh
BT S EL B 97.71 152.69 145.51
Electricity consumption intensity MWh/employee
LA Sk e 0.46 0.76 0.68

Water Management

The water consumption of the Group is limited to basic
cleaning and sanitation in the offices, and the water
consumed equals to the amount of sewage discharged.
The Group has been strengthening its water-saving
promotion, posting water saving slogans, and guiding
employees to use water reasonably. During the Reporting
Period, the Group’s water consumption intensity has
increased by approximately 18.63%. The Group'’s water
consumption performances were as follows:

KERE
AEBFEKERRRAENERNSTEZMEE - FTERE
FIKESERPERASKE - REE—EE MR EN LK
B T1E RMEVORBAKMIEZERE  EBEREAEAK R
WMER - FEKEE EF418.63% - AEBHFEKIZN
(I

For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December
Unit 30 June 2023 2021 2020
H#E_T_=F% BET-A=+—H
AA=1H IR
B LE+NEABE —TZ—F —TTF
Water m3
o 75K 360.74 304.10 583.60
Water consumption intensity m?3/employee
EkmERE THK/ BE 173 1o 271

In view of the geographical location of the Group’s
operation and nature of business, there is no problem in
sourcing water.

MRS B EEME LR HE - KRBT E

P o

REERERERERRAR
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Use of Packaging Materials

The Group does not consume significant amounts of
packaging materials for its products as it does not have
any industrial production or factory facilities.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group recognizes the responsibility in minimising
the negative environmental impacts of its operations in
achieving sustainable development, therefore the Group
works tirelessly to mitigate the environmental impacts
of its activities through adopting various measures.
Although the core business of the Group has a small
impact on the environment and natural resources, as
an ongoing commitment to good corporate social
responsibility, the Group realises its responsibility in
minimising any negative environmental impacts in its
business operations. The Group regularly assesses the
environmental risks of its business and adopts preventive
measures to reduce the risks and ensures compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

Climate Change

Climate change and global warming are the major
environmental concerns enhance in the world. Despite
it having no significant impact on our main business,
we still strive to put forward environmental conservation
practice and raise the environmental awareness of the
employees.

Since our major business operation is carried out in office
premises, climate change does not have direct significant
impact on the business. To tackle with the extreme
weather, the Group will review the existing measures for
adverse weather conditions from time to time and ensure
normal productivity of the Company and the safety of
the employees.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
Employment

Employees are regarded as the valuable asset and core
competitive advantage of the Group, while they also
serve as the driving force for the continuous innovation
of the Group. The Group applies robust and transparent
recruitment processes based on merit selection, and
recruit individuals based on their suitability for the
position and potential to fulfill the Group’s current and
future needs.

The Group is dedicated to providing equal opportunity in
all aspects of employment and maintaining an inclusive
and collaborative workplace culture that is free from
discrimination, physical or verbal harassment against any
individual on the basis of race, religion, colour, gender,
physical or mental disability, age, place of origin, marital
status and sexual orientation.
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The Group has established the Methodology for
Performance Evaluation Management and Employment
Rules to regulate the performance appraisal system, and
staff performance appraisal will be carried out regularly.
Results of the performance appraisal are served as the
basis for salary adjustment, promotion, transfer and
demotion. The Group does not tolerate the dismissal
of employees under any unreasonable basis. Any
termination of employment contract would be based on
reasonable, lawful grounds and internal policies.

The Group’s employees are entitled to paid holidays
pursuant to statutory requirements or respective
employment contracts. The Group has formulated
the Attendance Management Regulation to specify
employees’ working time and rest periods. Overtime
working is subjected to approval from supervisors
and overtime working expenses will be reimbursed.
The Group has also set up an electronic attendance
registration system to continuously monitor the working
hours of employees.

The Group pays statutory pension fund for employees in
accordance with relevant legal requirements, including
the Mandatory Provident Fund for employees in Hong
Kong and social insurance payments for employees in the
People’s Republic of China.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with employment-
related laws and regulations including but not limited
to the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of Laws of Hong Kong).

RIR - HERERRE

AEERY TRBAKERTEMES TR ARER
REZFE UEHETEERREZ - RIRERE
BIEREFGMBE &7 FBMEBOER - NEH
BIARFEMNTAEBAERE KRIEERAOVEENGE
BVEMNEH R AEPBR

AEEREAERBEEZZREXRESBZEAAHN
HMREEXAHRY - AEEGETEHEEMRE
METEEN TERSRMAKERE - MM TIFAEEE
HofE - LB T AR - ARBEERYL TETEHE
FLEF  NIFBEITEE M TIERF -

AEERBABZEZR[ESBEMNEEENRE B
FERENBRFIMEATEEMNTEARXNERERENLE
R -

RBEA - NEBEY RERBERTETEBEBE
BER BRETRR(FEARKXMBELEE) - (F
FEARKMBELHERIE) - (hEARKMBERFDE)
KRB IHRD) (BREDIFES7TE) -

Number of Employees

EE"AR
For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December
30 June 2023 2021 2020
BE-Z-= HE+-_A=1+—8H
~AA=+H IEFE
F+NERHE T —F —EETF
Gender 4 Bl
Male 5 157 152 163
Female 8 52 49 52
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Number of Employees

EE®E
For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December
30 June 2023 2021 2020
BE-—Z=-= BHEt+=-A=+—H
ANA=+H IFFE

T+ NERHE —E-— —ECEF
Age Group Fie 45l
Below 30 30 A T 14 18 19
30-50 30—507% 131 143 141
50 or above 50B% 3 A £ 64 40 55

Turnover Rate
mE E
For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December
30 June 2023 2021 2020
BE-E-=F BET-A=+—H
~A=1+H IEFE

F+NERHBE T —E-EF
Gender Bl
Male ES 6.5% 6.3% 6.2%
Female Z 5.2% 4.9% 4.9%
Health and Safety REHEZSR

The Group is committed to protecting employees’ health
and safety. The Group has formulated the Physical Access
Control Procedure in accordance with local laws and
regulations to maintain office order and ensure internal
health and safety at workplace. Relevant regulations on
facility management, workplace management and fire
management are documented in the Physical Access
Control Procedure, and responsible personnel are
required to constantly monitor the workplace, identify
and correct deficiencies that do not meet the standards.
The Group also provides safety trainings to increase the
safety awareness of all employees, while encouraging all
employees to report health and safety incidents and risks
whenever identified.
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In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has taken certain actions to strengthen the
health and safety precautionary measures in its workplace
so as to ensure the health of its employees. Apart
from increasing the frequency of office cleaning and
sterilisation, employees are also required to wear surgical
face masks in office areas. Epidemic prevention supplies
such as thermometer and alcohol-based hand sanitisers
are provided in office, and guideline on the disposal of
surgical face masks is provided to employees to ensure
face masks are properly disposed after use. The Group
has strictly followed guidelines and announcements
made by local governments and regulators in regards to
epidemic prevention, and the Group strives to provide a
healthy and safe working environment for employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with health and safety-
related laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, and
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509
of Laws of Hong Kong).

Development and Training

The Group has developed the Training Management
Policy, and has created a variety of learning opportunities
for employees to enhance their competence, job skills,
knowledge and performance by the multilevel training
system. In daily operations, the Group provides on-
board trainings for new employees. Experienced
employees will act as mentors to guide the new
joiners. Such arrangement does not only enhance
team communication and spirit, improve employees’
technical skills and managerial capability, while it also
encourages employees at all levels to pursue continuous
learning and development. The Group also provides
the latest industrial information and updates on laws
and regulations relevant to the Group’s operation and
employees’ work from time to time.

RIR - HERERRE

RELH2019BMRESHARITHIEE  ARBEDRIRE
LEITE) AR B TSGR B M 2 2 AN a3t - DATE
RETHRE - B TIRMPREBFZNHESH AR
BERETHARLNERBFEIIOE - BOAZRBEHE
A& PIana EEt MERE TR - R B TRHEEEN
BMOSMES| > AEREMRRKRIEEEEDS - AEBER
RE ST B M B E BN R T B IEET MR
FOABORBETRHEBEL 2N THFRE -

RBEMA > AREYREREERNTETREEL S
MEERZEROBER  BRFEETRIR(PEARKLNE
B8R MCBERZ 2 BZFRGH) (FREDES509%) -

EEYSEEE]

AEEGE THIEEBRR  BBZREANEIEER
REBRAGETRESERS - AERHERES - TIEREE -
MBMAR - EAFELT  AEESHEEIEMAER
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Total Number of Staff Attended
SIENETHANE

For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December
30 June 2023 2021 2020
BE-Z—-= HE+-_A=1T—H
NA=1+H IEFE
IE+NERHE T —ETF
Gender Bl
Male = 82 68 88
Female 8 32 22 33
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Total Number of Training Hours

=TSR

For
the 18 months For the year ended
ended 31 December
30 June 2023 2021 2020
BE-Z=-= BHE+=-A=+—H
ANA=+A IFFE

L+ NERAME —F-— —E_EF
Employee Category BIRA
Senior Management mRERE 156 121 133
Middle Management RAREIRE 643 421 851
General Staff —mEL 526 412 1,437
Labour Standards % T4

The Group strictly complies with laws to prohibit the
employment of child and forced labour in any of its
operations. The Group’s recruitment management system
has set out requirements for the legal working age of
employees. The Group reviews and verifies applicant’s
identity documents such as proofs of academic
qualifications and working experience during the
recruitment process. Applicant who is suspected to have
false academic qualifications and working experiences
will not be employed. The Group enters employment
contract with each of its employee in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with child and
forced labour-related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Minors, Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of Laws of Hong Kong).

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values the importance of maintaining
and managing a sustainable supply chain. The Group
manages its supply chain by regularly assessing the
environmental and social risks of suppliers, and it
urges suppliers to take measures in reducing their
environmental and social risks. The Group values
the importance of communication with suppliers,
including continuous communication during routine
work, and establishes strategic cooperation relationship
with suppliers through technical support and unique
competitive advantage, for which it helps to achieve
win-win situation and strengthen the cooperation
relationship.
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The Group has established a stringent and standardized
procurement system to effectively monitor the
procurement procedures and cost control, while
increasing the transparency of procurement
management. The Group conducts procurement on
an open, fair and impartial basis, and it does not allow
any forms of corruption or bribery. Employees and
other individuals with interest in the suppliers are not
allowed to participate in relevant procurement activities.
The Group has established a rigorous supplier selection
system. The Group selects suppliers based on a number
of factors, such as business ethics, compliance to relevant
industrial standards, regulations and laws, etc, and only
suppliers with good track record in the past and no
serious violations of business ethics will be selected.

Product Responsibility

The Group provides quality and warm service experiences
to consumers and customers through standardised
service quality and management. The Group reviews all
complaints from customers, suppliers and partners in
accordance with internal procedures and guidelines. The
Group will conduct investigations to resolve complaints
and make improvements accordingly.

The Group recognizes the importance of protecting
customers’ privacy, and it has established the Information
Security Management Procedure in regulating the
collection, process, and use of confidential data in order
to prevent the leakage of such data. The Information
Security Management Procedure has also documented
the immediate corrective actions when incidents of data
leakages were identified.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with any laws and
regulations concerning advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress, including but not limited to the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection
of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Patent Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of Laws of Hong Kong).

Anti-corruption

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations and does not tolerate any
forms of corruption or bribery.

The Group has adopted and circulated internally clear
guidelines for employees which strictly prohibit bribery,
extortion, fraud, money laundering and other acts,
and require its personnel to declare any interests in the
Group’s business partners, suppliers and advisers that
may conflict with the Group’s business interests.
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The Group has adopted a zero-tolerance approach
towards all forms of corruption, and disciplinary
actions will be taken against any kinds of misconduct
or malpractice. The Group has implemented a
whistleblowing policy to allow employees to report any
suspected business irregularities such as breach of duty,
abuse of power, receiving bribes, employees to the Board
for investigation and verification. Any person who is
found to have victimised or retaliated against those who
have raised concerns under this policy will be subjected
to disciplinary sanctions. In some cases, the Group might
refer the case to regulators and/or to law enforcement
authorities when necessary.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with related laws and
regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, including but not limited to the Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery in
the People’s Republic of China, the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201 of Laws of Hong Kong).

COMMUNITY

Community Investment

The Group believes that maintaining an inclusive and
welcoming community relies on the co-operation of
people, corporations and the government. The Group
hopes to foster employees’ sense of social responsibility
by actively encouraging them to participate in charitable
activities. Such activities provide employees the
opportunities to make contributions to the community,
while reinforcing the Group’s corporate values. By
working with various community partners, the Group
believes that it can bring positive impact towards
community sustainable development. Moving forward,
the Group will continue to seek opportunities to support
charitable organizations where appropriate in order to
keep bringing positive progress to society.

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023

, Social and Governance Report

AEEHAALANE SRRERDEE  HHEMT
ANTETRANERTRARRLEED - AXECER
[HEBR  URFEEANEZTRHEEMAIRMNEFRE
ROK PIMERBE  ERBE WXHE 55
B RERERETRETHEMZE - REANBEK - &1E
MARBRAXFARTNELRESZBNLREED ©
AERUEBFRAT AEERGREEVERSRTBRGE
EWBR LBIEEPT -

ﬁéi&%ﬁﬁm CAREBEWARBREMTETERER B
 BFF OB SRRERNBER - BFRENRN(HE
E EABIADE) ~ (PEARK %H&T\ BBFER)
(PEARAMBEENELAEBBTRNETRE) (B
IEFERR RO (BB EDIE 201 ) -

HE

HERE
AEERREFLRNBETENRFAERNTE %
MBFOAE - NEE AL 38 1A 5 B B 2 10 25
%EJJL‘M%%EH@ETE@%C’E%ié@ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
BEMBEMOKE  RASERTAKENEERET-B
BESEHEAEBHNEE  ARERENAATR

ARBEREREGTE - KRR AEEREES KK
SEEENREXHEEAS U TR/ ST RIER
HIHE 2D



M MecMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA ECOTOURISM GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Ecotourism Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 87 to 224, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the 18 months then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 30 June 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the 18 months then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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We draw attention to Note 2.1.1 in the consolidated
financial statements, which indicates that the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$219,868,000
during the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 and, as of that
date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$445,825,000 and the Group
has net liabilities of approximately HK$137,587,000. As
stated in Note 2.1.1, these events or conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in Note 2.1.1, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section,
the key audit matters were identified as follows.
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The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was
addressed in our audit

Impairment assessment for non-current non-financial

assets

Refer to Notes 4(a), 16, 17 and 18 in the consolidated

financial statements.

The carrying amounts of
the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible
assets as at 30 June 2023
were approximately
HK$27,501,000,
HK$309,012,000

and HK$13,054,000,
respectively. No impairment
charge was recognised
against these non-current
non-financial assets for the
18 months ended 30 June
2023.

Management assessed
whether there was any
impairment of the carrying
amounts of non-current
non-financial assets as at 30

June 2023 using value-in-use
calculations for each smallest

identifiable group of assets
that generate independent
cash flows (a cash-
generating unit) (“CGU").
Preparing the value-in-

use calculations requires
management to exercise
significant judgement,
particularly in relation to
revenue forecasts, operating
margins and discount rates.

Our audit procedures to
assess the impairment of
non-current non-financial
assets included the
following:

* Assessing
management’s
identification of CGUs
and the allocation of
assets to identified
CGUs with reference to
our understanding of
the Group's business
and the requirements
of the prevailing
accounting standards;

e Challenging the
reasonableness of key
assumptions based on
our knowledge of the
business and industry;

e Reconciling input
data to supporting
evidence, such as
approved budgets
and considering the
reasonableness of these
budgets and plans
and considered the
evidence in support
of them, principally in
relation to historical
trends and actual
performance;
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How the matter was

The Key Audit Matter addressed in our audit
We identified impairment e Involving our auditor’s
of non-current non-financial expert to assist us
assets as a key audit matter in evaluating the
because of the significant methodology used in
management judgement the preparation of the
and estimation required discounted cash flow
in assessing potential forecast with reference
impairment. to the requirements

of the prevailing
accounting standards
and assessing

whether the discount
rates applied in the
discounted cash flow
forecast was within

the range adopted by
other companies in the
same industry;

e Checking the
mathematical accuracy
of the value-in-
use calculations in
the management’s
impairment
assessment; and

e Performing sensitivity
analysis of the
key assumptions
underlying the
discounted cash flow
forecast in order to
assess the potential
impact of a range of
possible outcomes and
considering whether
there was any evidence
of management bias
in the selection of
assumptions.
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The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was
addressed in our audit

Impairment assessment for accounts receivable

Refer to notes 3.1(b) and 26 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Group tested the
amount of accounts

receivable for impairment.

This impairment test is
significant to our audit
because the balance

of accounts receivable,
net of impairment,

of approximately
HK$7,185,000 as at 30
June 2023 is material to
the consolidated financial
statements.

We identified impairment
of accounts receivable

as a key audit matter
because of the significant
management judgement
and estimation required
in assessing potential
impairment.

Our audit procedures to
assess the impairment
of accounts receivables
included the following:

— Assessing the Group’s
procedures on
granting credit limits
and credit periods to
customers;

— Assessing the Group’s
relationship and
transaction history
with the customers;

— Testing the integrity
of information used
by management to
develop the provision
matrix, including
accounts receivable
ageing analysis as
at 30 June 2023, on
a sample basis, by
comparing individual
items in the analysis
with the relevant sales
agreements, sales
invoices, credit terms,
settlement records
and other supporting
documents;
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The Key Audit Matter

China Ecotourism Group Limited

How the matter was
addressed in our audit

With the assistance

of our auditor’s
expert, challenging
management’s basis
and judgement in
determining credit loss
allowance on accounts
receivable as at 30
June 2023, including
the reasonableness

of management’s
grouping of the
remaining trade
debtors into different
categories in the
provision matrix, and
the basis of estimated
loss rates applied

in each category in
the provision matrix
(with reference to
historical default rates
and forward-looking
information); and

Assessing the
disclosure of the
Group’s exposure

to credit risk in the
consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2022/2023
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The consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 were audited by
another auditor who expressed a qualified opinion on
those statements on 30 June 2022.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group'’s financial process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB S

e UEERARELESTERNREMEIELEW
WAREFER M EN R  BESOFEEERAY
BRABBANERTHEN EMAREsE &
BHRFEQLERNELBRRE - MEPIRRIFHE
BEATNHEEN  RIBEBEEZBENRE T IRFEA
FEIBREYBHRERTOMEBEEE - WEBNET
& AMERTHMIE R - RAVER D EREE XA
HE BB MBS RRE o R - RERFIHEK
BRAEEY BEREEEFELE -

o HERAMBHRRNBBEHRSTA BHBLAT
BREEER  URGAMBHRREETH RRE
AR ZMER -

o 3 EXEAERIEBEINVBEEHENTE
FMEENERNERE  AEHEAMBHRRERER -
HMEEEERFNTM  EBMAT - BHA/E
RERARERHEE-

BPEEZZE e (AP Bttt 2 8E - B
RHENERENRBABR  RERABRBRMERTE
A2 o 38R ) R BR ER R O (R T AR K -

BHTMEZZESFELER  BHRAMENEEHE
VHERNBEBEBRER TERFEEBBAENSERSS
FERMBIUNMBEREIEGBEE  ARAEERN
BT - REEREE M REATTEN SRR Z BT 45 16 o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Chun Sing
Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number: P05537

24/F., Siu On Centre
188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong

22 September 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

,-_H/_\ = N7
,%T\ [=) Tﬁﬁ%‘%
For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 HE=ZT==F XA=+HI+/\EAHE

For For
the 18 months the year
ended ended
30 June 31 December
2023 2021
BZE HE
—E-_=F —E-—F
~A=+H +=ZA=+—8
LE+NEREE IEFE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 BT BT
Revenue EE S 207797 124920
Costs of sales and services $HE MRS A AR
— Depreciation of lottery terminals — BRI REITE - (3,867)
— Others —HAth (145,495) (80,160)
.....(45495) ! (84,027)
Gross profit £ F 62,302 40,893
Other income HAB WA 7 3,152 21,827
Other losses — net Hih 518558 8 (32,318) (26,480)
Net impairment losses on financial assets £ B & R BB 1EF 5 3.1(b)(v) (8,187) (61,257)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— B ARz W 40 - 121
General and administrative expenses —BERITHEA (185,127) (202,965)
Operating loss rEEE 9 (160,178) (227,861)
Finance costs B 75 AR 10 (59,201) (57,521)
Loss before income tax Fri8 & A 518 (219,379) (285,382)
Income tax (expense)/credit PSR (i) /% 11 (489) 4,471
Loss for the period/year BN/ FARER (219,868) (280,911)
Loss attributable to: EEEER
Owners of the Company PINNETEF =N (219,030) (258,312)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R T (838) (22,599)
(219,868) (280,911)
(restated)
(FE75))
Loss per share attributable to ARREEAELEZ
owners of the Company BRER
— basic (HK$ per Share) —HEAKX(FRBT) 12 (1.42) (2.27)
— diluted (HK$ per Share) — 8 (8RB T) 12 (1.42) (2.27)
B4 ERERERRAR 20222023 F 3k
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e ZEWAR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE=ZT==F XA=+THIE+N\EAHE

Loss for the period/year

Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Loss on revaluation of properties held
for own use

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Currency translation differences
— translation of financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong
— accumulated exchange differences to
profit or loss upon disposal of a subsidiary

Total of other comprehensive (expense)/income
for the period/year

Total comprehensive expense for the period/year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense
for the period/year

China Ecotourism Group Limited

BN/ FRER

Hi2m () A
BRREN S B 2 A
EffERMEZER

At EFT n R E R IR H
EXELZ5
— BB B R R 8K
ZH]E

—HE B RQ R A
Bamz RFtEREZR

BN/ FAEMEE
(Z) /WA 85

B/ FRZEXHARE

FEN
PINNETEZ =N
FEIE IR b A

MR/ FREEXHARE

Annual Report 2022/2023

For For

the 18 months the year
ended ended

30 June 31 December

2023 2021

BE HE
—E=-= —E-—F
AA=tH +=—H=+—8H
L+ NEAHE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
(219,868) (280,911)
(3,554) -
(3,554) -
(14,393) 7,668
- (234)

(14,393) 7,434
(17,947) 7,434
(237,815) (273,477)
(229,134) (257,946)
(8,681) (15,531)
(237,815) (273,477)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RE AR R

At30June2023 RZT==F,A=+H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Investment in a joint venture

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Current assets

Equity investment at fair value
through profit or loss

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Restricted bank deposits

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accruals and other payables

Contract liabilities

Amount due to a joint venture

Amount due to a shareholder

Amounts due to key management
personnel

Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings

Lease liabilities

Convertible bonds

Net current liabilities
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Net (liabilities)/assets

FRBEE

WE - IR LR
EREEE
BVEE

N kNI
R—HKALEERE
BRAFEARERZ
TREE

REBEE

B ER ABRRD
iR &

FE

JE U AR 18
BNRIE - HER
H h FE U BR SR
R BIRIRIT R
e MIRTTHER

BEEARE
nREBAE

eI AR IR

fEET B A N H BT RR R

BHaE

BN —HAEERERA
JE T — L AR 3R k1A
R EEERABRIEA

eI IR
RITREMER
HEAE

A R (A 55

RBAEFE
HEERARBAERE
FRBEE

BELEFSHRAE
HEARE

(BfE) EEFE

Notes
k3

16
17(a)
18
20
21

23

24
25
26

27
28
28

29

5(b)
21
30

31
32

17(a)
33

34
17(@a)

At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2021
RIZEBEZ=F RZIZ=—F
AA=t+H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
27,501 33,063
309,012 322,969
13,054 20,408
189 189
554 4,536
350,310 381,165
2,706 6,918
18,229 21,347
7,185 11,713
22,527 51,014
19,447 13,310
84,207 87,739
154,301 192,041
504,611 573,206
15,626 5,485
64,622 34,830
52,800 35,211
11,296 6,225
33,800 1,224
17,638 17,935
2,106 2,013
241,928 197,000
4,556 3,457
155,754 127,062
600,126 430,442
(445,825) (238,401)
(95,515) 142,764
36,863 39,161
5,209 3,375
42,072 42,536
(137,587) 100,228

REERERERERRAR

2022/2023 FE %R 89
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RE BRI &R

At30June2023 RZZT==F,A=+H

At At
30 June 31 December
2023 2021

R-ZB-=F RZT—_—F
NA=+H +—A=+—H

Notes HK$'000 HK$000
BtaF FER FHET
Equity attributable to owners AAREAE AEGESR
of the Company
Share capital [N 35 77,211 77,211
Accumulated losses 2EtEE (2,224,196) (2,011,224)
Statutory reserve EE R 37(a) 23,208 20,144
Other reserves H b 37(b) 1,751,046 1,770,272
(372,731) (143,597)
Non-controlling interests TR ER 19(a) 235,144 243,825
Total (deficit)/equity (BB ERER (137,587) 100,228

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to FERITERE 24 B VIFEMBHREN_E_=FNA
224 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 “t+ZHAEEERMETHRRES
September 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

CHAN TAN NA, DONNA QIU PEIYUAN
B 53 43 himm
Director Director
E4 E
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At 1 January 2021
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences

Total of other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive expense

Appropriation to statutory reserve
Shares issued pursuant to rights issue
(net of share issuance expenses)

Release of revaluation reserve upon:
- depreciation of owned properties
and related leasehold land

At 31 December 2021

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

4

BhR

=z
For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 HE=ZT==F XA=+HI+/\EAHE

'._H —lI—M
e

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREABAEL
Non-
Share Accumulated  Statutory Other  controlling
capital osses reserve reserves interests Total
A ZHEE  iTRE  HbEE  FikEs it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT  A%Fr BBt A%Tr  A%Fr B%Tr
(Note 35) (Note 37(a)) (Note 37(b))
(H#35) (W#376) (WF370)
RZZ-—-F-f-A 25737 (1,757,683) 18,798 1,622,090 259,356 168,298
FREB - (258312 - - (22,599)  (280,911)
Et2EHRA
ERERZER - - - 366 7,068 7434
AZEKALE - - - 366 7,068 7,434
FEZLEE - (258312 - 366 (15,531)  (273,477)
BREEERE - (1,346) 1,346 - - -
REERET KR
(MkRAHETHER) 51,474 - - 153,933 - 205407
BETH 2 B
-BRMERIAE
RELiTE - 6117 - (6,117) - -
RZE=-%+-A=t+-H 77211 (2,011,224) 20,144 1770272 243825 100,228
FEAEHEREARAT  2022/2023 F 3
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Conso
mEEREER

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE=ZT==F XA=+THIE+N\EAHE

At 1 January 2022
Loss for the period

Other comprehensive expense:
Loss on revaluation of owned properties
and related leasehold land
Currency translation differences

Total of other comprehensive expense
Total comprehensive expense

Appropriation to statutory reserve
Release of revaluation reserve upon:
- depreciation of owned properties
and related leasehold land

At 30 June 2023

China Ecotourism Group Limited

W-E--%-A—H
HNEE
Et2ERE:

EffERNERABHE LY

bl 3

ERELZR
HEft2EXHAR
RENHAR

BREAEHRE
BETI 2 Efi M -
-ERNEREE
BETHITE

R-B-=EXA=1H

Annual Report 2022/2023

idated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGk PN
Non-
Share Accumulated  Statutory Other  controlling
capital losses reserve reserves interests Total
Bx  RHFR  EERB  RuRE FERER @
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
B¥TRT AMTR BMTR BT B%TR  E%Tn
(Note 35) (Note 37(a)) (Note 37(b))
(Wit 35) (Wi£37) (Ka2370b)
77,211 (2,011,224) 20,144 1,770,272 243,825 100,228
- (219,030 - - (838)  (219,868)
- - - (3,554) - (3,554)
- - - (6,550) (7,843) (14,393)
- - - (10,104) (7,843) (17,947)
- (219,030 - (10,104) (8,681)  (237,815)
- (3,064) 3,064 - - -
- 9,122 - (9,122 - -
77,211 (2,224,196) 23,208 1,751,046 235144 (137,587)




Cash flows from operating activities

Operating cash flows before changes in
working capital

Changes in working capital

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Disposal of a subsidiary

Placement of restricted bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Proceeds from issue of shares
Advance from a joint venture
Advance from/(repayment to) a
shareholder
Advances from/(repayments to) key
management personnel
Redemption of convertible bonds
Repayment of lease liabilities
Repayment of bank borrowings
Proceeds from new bank loan
Proceeds from new loan from
a finance company

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the period/year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the period/year (Note)

Note: Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and financial institutions, other short- term

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ll‘mAiﬁlﬁljlbiﬁ

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 HE=ZT==F XA=+HI+/\EAHE

REmBMzRE
BN FAEHR

RERHMA RS FHE

RAZHELZRETE
BEME  RERRE
R . =T
(e

b8 — R A )
TR BT
Bk

BRERDA RS FHE

METEELECRERE
BAF A
BTN PT1S RIB
—REBEDE IR

% B A /TJ\/(F_J iHX%?&W\)

TEEBABRI (AEXE
%fi)\ﬁ?&a’A)

fE O AT R E 5
EEHEEE
EEIRITEE
WIRITESFT E R GIA
HEBMARMERERY
Fri8 kI8
MEEHEELE 2 REFRE

RERBESENEINFE
8,/ FNRERBLZEDY
ERRB e

MR/ FHREER
RESEYW(iZ)

UEE

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three

months or less.

Notes
i3

38(a)
38(a)

38(a)

40

28

For For

the 18 months the year
ended ended

30 June 31 December
2023 2021

BZE HZE

—E-= —EF-—

RA=tH +ZHA=+—H
F+NERHE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(88,003) (115,123)
81,993 67,491
(6,010) (47,632)
(1,324) (389)
(7,334) (48,021)
(3,002) (5,293)

169 939
- (14)
(7,125) (5,323)
1,350 4,780
(8,608) 4,911)
(43,136) (15,246)

- 155,407

3,619 -
32,576 (6,879)
1,356 (1,665)
(8,740) (26,220)
(12,273) (12,304)
(35,000) (20,000)
8,643 -
71,285 5,000
18,330 78,093
2,388 25,161
87,739 68,057
(5,920) (5,479)
84,207 87,739

REERERERERRAR

RehReSEMREEFRS RITMMBEE ZBAFR
RAZBMAR=EASAT ZEMERZREDERE -

2022/2023 3R
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China Ecotourism Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 13 September
2000 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda.
The addresses of its registered office and principal
place of business are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section to this annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) engage in the (i)
provision of technology and operation services for
lottery systems, terminal equipment and gaming
products in the China’s lottery market, which covers
various lottery products ranging from computer-
generated ticket games and KENO-type lottery to
new media lottery; (ii) research and development,
processing, production and sales of natural and
health food; and (iii) project development and
operation of ecotourism.

The Company’s shares are currently listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless
otherwise stated.

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the period/years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKSA”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for owned
properties and related leasehold land, equity
investment at fair value through profit or
loss and certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments) that are
measured at revalued amount or fair value.

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BT RSRR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE=ZT==F XA=+THIE+N\EAHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 HE=ZT==F XA=+HI+/\EAHE

2.1.1 Going concern

In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the directors
of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity
of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group incurred a net loss of
approximately HK$219,868,000 for the
18 months ended 30 June 2023 and,
as of that date, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$445,825,000
and has net liabilities of approximately
HK$137,587,000. These current
liabilities included amount due to a
shareholder amounting to approximately
HK$33,800,000, amounts due to key
management personnel amounting
to approximately HK$17,638,000,
bank and other borrowings amounting
to approximately HK$241,928,000
and convertible bonds amounting to
approximately HK$155,754,000 that will
be due in the coming twelve months.
The Group might not be able to meet its
liabilities in full when they fall due unless
it is able to generate sufficient cash flows
from future operations and/or other
sources, since as at 30 June 2023, the
Group only had cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$84,207,000
and restricted bank deposits of
HK$19,447,000. These events or
conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, the directors of the Company
have identified various initiatives to
address the Group’s liquidity needs,
which include the following:

2.1.1 #2845 &

RRBEGEVERERT  ERNAEER
B2 - =X A=+HIEt+/\{EA
BIEE LB E FEEL) 5% 219,868,000
T RBEZR  ASEZREBAGH
BEREE E 4B 445,825,000 7T &
AEE 7 FAELHEK137,587,0007T
ARAREZCBEZEAEENERTR
FES ZERDEEBREN K
W7 FRIE #7515 33,800,000 7T B
ZEEAB ZFHIAL)E®17,638,000 7T
MBRAR+ BB R EERIT R E
fth 12 & 4978 15 241,928,000 7T K ] #2 %
B 471 155,754,000 7T » A&
BRA-ZE-_=F"A=1tHEZHFERS
MR 1T 4 BR 407515 84,207,000 7T K2 IR
AV IR 1T IE R4 B ¥ 19,447,000 7T © R
e AR B N, E M ARE £ 2
ANEER GAAEE A EEEER
HN2HEEEEAE HEEHHEBER
BT FEEANTETCEE @ AJgeifsE
BB ECEELEETARE -

FUHE AAFREEEHREZERE
NERAEENRBESHFR T E
EEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BT RSRR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE=ZT==F XA=+THIE+N\EAHE

2.1.1 Going concern (continued)

(@

(b)

©

(d)

The Group has been actively
negotiating with the relevant
bank for renewal of the revolving
bank and other borrowings with
outstanding principal amount of
HK$233,285,000 that are secured
by the Group’s property located in
Hong Kong. Taking into account
(i) historical successful renewal
of bank borrowings and (ii) the
carrying amount of the of the
pledged property in the amount
of HK$318,376,000 as at 30 June
2023, the directors believe that
the Group will be able to renew
the banking facilities;

The Group has also been actively
negotiating with (i) various
banks and persons or institutions
providing finance to obtain
additional new credit facilities
and (ii) the holders of convertible
bonds due in November 2023 to
further extend the maturity date;

Subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, the
Group has obtained written
confirmations from the relevant
key management personnel that
they will not demand repayment
of the outstanding principals in
the total amount of approximately
HK$17,638,000 and related
accrued interests in the eighteen
months from 22 September 2023;

Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, the Group has
obtained written confirmation
from Ms. Lau Ting, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, that
she expressed her willingness to
continue her financial support to
the Group, to provide adequate
funds for the Group to meet its
liabilities as they fall due and
to subordinate her rights to
repayment of all sums owing to
her from the Group to its creditors,
both present and future;

China Ecotourism Group Limited  Annual Report 2022/2023

2.1.1 FFEKE ()

(@)

(b)

O]

(d)

AEB—HHEABBETREGEERD
KEBKRS BB 233,285,000
TTREBRBITREMERZEDR -
WAREBOIREE 2 WEFER
HoEERGOBELEKIIEER
TEREM@MEBERDER_ZT—_=
FRAZTHZEEFEABE
318,376,000 T ' EERAAEEH
e AIRTEREEER

AEEN—EBGHEGTRETT
DIRMHERE M A T B g7
& VEREEINYFTE EREE M (i)
—E - =F+— AR a8k
BHEZHEBAERAEREIEA

RmEMRRE  AEEZINEH
AEIRERABNEEER  #
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A+ -_BEFTNEAREXR
AEBEENREEZASAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 HE=ZT==F XA=+HI+/\EAHE

2.1.1 Going concern (continued)

(e

®

(9)

(h)

As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 4 August
2023, the disposal of a property
situated in Hong Kong with
the provisional agreement for
sale and purchase entered on
5 June 2023 at a consideration
of HK$309,800,000 was not
proceeded. The Group will
continue to seek vendors to
dispose of the property. The
expected net proceeds arising
from the disposal, after deducting
the repayment of the outstanding
bank and other borrowings for
discharging the charge over the
property and the related expenses,
will be used for general working
capital purposes by the Group;

The Group will continue to seek
for equity financing opportunities;

The Group will continue to implement
measures to speed up the collection
of outstanding accounts and other
receivables; and

The Group will continue to take active
measures to control administrative
costs and maintain containment of
capital expenditures.

(e)

®

(9

(h)

2.1.1 FFEEE ()

HMARBR—_ZE-_=ZFNAMNE
AELNAEMEE REZZ
T=HFXNARBRUNBREER
3% AR BB % 309,800,000 7T
E-BUREBNYWEDIKEUYE -
AEBBEEDECE HFHEZD
¥ - HEFTHEANEHAER
EFE MR EEREERT
EREBERBEGRZERLCHE
R RABESE  ShHASE
ERE—MREEESHSR

AEBEREES KRERERS

7R 5 B % A 78 PR X 4t A 0 R U
Bl R 838 2 & U AR TR I EL At JE W
B R

7R 5 [ 1% A A PR EX TR 1R 4 DA H2
HIFTBRR AR R B ) B AR S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BT RSRR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE=ZT==F XA=+THIE+N\EAHE

2.1.1 Going concern (continued) 2.1.1 B ()

Based on the cash flow forecast of the
Group prepared by the management
and assuming success of the above
measures, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group
would have adequate funds to meet
its liabilities as and when they fall due
at least twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company consider it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going
concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made
to write down the value of assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise
and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The
effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

2.1.2 Change of financial year end date

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board
dated 28 December 2022, the
Company’s financial year end date
has been changed from 31 December
to 30 June commencing from the
financial period from 1 January 2022
to 30 June 2023 in order to enable the
Group to rationalise and mobilise its
resources with higher efficiency for the
preparation of results announcement
as well as reports. Accordingly, the
comparative figures presented for the
audited consolidated statement of profit
or loss, audited consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, audited
consolidated statement of change in
equity, audited consolidated statement
of cash flows and related notes cover the
audited figures of the financial year from
1 January 20217 to 31 December 2021
which may not be comparable with the
amounts shown for the current period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BT RSERR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 HE=ZT==F XA=+HI+/\EAHE

2.1.3 Adoption of new and revised Hong 2.1.3IRMFTET RIEET 89 BB R 75 3 &5 £ R

Kong Financial Reporting Standard’s

adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these
financial statements for the current
accounting period:

Amendments  Property, Plant
to HKAS 16 and Equipment:
Proceeds before
Intended Use
Amendments  Onerous

(a) New and amended standards (@) TEERMZHITRKIBTER

ERA G HE 2 B % |k PR
MATHEBGMAGEMZ
FREMGHREENZBRTA

FEEER BXE BELER
FI16REFTAN & RTAE
A FT 1S B0R

EBEHER EBEAMAH-

to HKAS 37 Contracts — FI7HIEFTAR BIIEHN
Cost of Fulfilling B 7R
a Contract

Amendments  Reference to the

BEMBRE 2EHRSER

to HKFRS 3 Conceptual AERIE35%
Framework CEES
Amendments  Annual ERMBHmE BAEMBRE
to HKFRSs Improvements EAMERT AR ZR TN
to HKFRS E_T_FF
2018-2020 FEBE
Amendments  Merger BETIESIE ST HEEHIE R
to Accounting  Accounting CHEIES CRiN=EIRzS

Guideline 5 for Common
Control

Combinations

None of these developments
have had a material effect on how
the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared
or presented. The Group has
not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting
period.

% 5 BB 4 YN 5 B N B BK A
HAZE 48 0 B IS0 B9 A ) X 2 3R
TREEEMNERATE - AKE
I & R A E RN A G HEE R
ERRHFTERI SRR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR HRR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE=ZT==F XA=+THIE+N\EAHE

2.1.3 Adoption of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard’s

(continued)

(b) New standards, amendments
and interpretations not yet

adopted

Up to the date of issue of
these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments which have not
been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments
include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to

HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

China Ecotourism Group Limited

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback*

Classification of
Liabilities as
Current or Non-
current and related
amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5
(2020)*

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants*

Disclosure of
Accounting
Policies'

Supplier Finance
Arrangements*

Annual Report 2022/2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE-T-=FXA=+AHIL+/\EAHE

2.1.3 Adoption of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard’s
(continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments
and interpretations not yet
adopted (continued)
Amendments to Definition of

HKAS 8 Accounting
Estimates'
Amendments to Deferred Tax related
HKAS 12 to Assets and
Liabilities arising
from a Single
Transaction’
Amendments to International Tax
HKAS 12 Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules?

! Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2023 (except for HKAS 12
paragraphs 4A and 88A which are
immediately effective upon issue
of the amendments).

3 Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2024

The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of what the impact of
these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

2.1.3 FRFTET R 15T 1Y) BB R 75 R 5 B R

(b) MERRAZHETER - BRI R

28 @

EAGR RN GHEIMER
F8HEFTA

BB GRIER] HE-QXHEEN
F1R2FBITA  BERARGEED
MIRER A

EE g EA B A i o —
e

ERRETA  E-30RE
MR
! 2023F1 A1 B ZRFAREF

JEHR AR

2 H2023F1A1B K 2% FBE
FEMREM(REBGTLERE
1257 4A X 88ABR R B 1TIE IE SR 142
BB A 30

3 WER-FEBDRR 2 RHEBHOF
JE BAR A R

4 R2024F1 1B ZEFRRF
T HARS A &K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BT RSRR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE=ZT==F XA=+THIE+N\EAHE

2.2.1 Subsidiaries 2.2.1 K18~

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred assets. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the
results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement
of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE—T-=FNA=+HI-+/\EAHE

2.2.3 Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method, after
initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.2.4 Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised
at cost, and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates
and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in
an equity-accounted investment equals
or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions
between the Group and its associates
and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity-accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BT RSRR MR

For the 18 months ended 30 June 2023 #HE=ZT==F XA=+THIE+N\EAHE

2.2.4 Equity accounting (continued) 224 #m Ei% (&)
The carrying amount of equity- R ARKRENRE S EBREMNMTE2.9
accounted investments is tested for P I SR T TRVE B, »

impairment in accordance with the
policy described in Note 2.9.

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests 225 E R E

The Group treats transactions with ZIKEI%HT&;ﬁGEQE? il 4 O FE 4% AR A
non-controlling interests that do not AR HRERAEBERSEG AN -
result in a loss of control as transactions BAERERE BT REIFERER
with equity owners of the Group. A BREERFHE - LARBREHE DR 8
change in ownership interest results in e - IR S AR R T
an adjustment between the carrying ERSEWRECEANEREZEEREAR

amounts of the controlling and non- RIEE ARIGERTEB L REEANER -

controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the

Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate BN S B ] B o Il - LR PR A sK
or equity account for an investment EARTENMELEE ARIRERA
because of a loss of control, joint control BR—IERER B’\Eﬁi’%"g B (] OR BB #E
or significant influence, any retained i%ﬂﬁ’&?ﬁ.ﬁr; mEREEZFHNIE
interest in the entity is remeasured mFER o E’Jﬂﬁi\é?\ﬁﬁﬂf/ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ%’ﬁj &
to its fair value with the change in ﬂ:\%iirﬂié?ﬂ’ﬂ% AfEmmE %
carrying amount recognised in profit N ERIAREE - b %HIJEAﬁ
or loss. This fair value becomes the 2 EWARZE BEAN TS EIR
initial carrying amount for the purposes MINA R E EE&H:?E%F% BEXEE
of subsequently accounting for the MHAAR EBRELANEMEE
retained interest as an associate, joint WAERHSEEN S EE BRI ER
venture 